MINUTES OF THE MEETING BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY COMMITTEE MONTANA STATE SENATE

March 12, 1981

The regular meeting of the Business and Industry Committee was held at 10 a.m. in the Scott Hart Auditorium on Thursday, March 12. All members were present.

HOUSE BILL NO. 409: Representative Keyser, District 81. This bill establishes fair trade practices for the distribution and exhibition of movies. "Blind Bidding" which means bidding, negotiating, offering terms, or agreeing to terms for a contract to show a movie prior to a trade screening, is prohibited. An agreement that provides for payment to a distributor based on attendance or box office receipts cannot be conditioned on a guaranteed minimum payment to the distributor. I couldn't believe in this day and age what was happening to the theater owners in the State of Montana. 95% of the film companies are controlled by a minute number of giants in the U.S. When a movie house is in the business of showing films they are in complete control. This bill offers a chance to many of the small owners. Blind bidding is simply this, you get a contract in the mail and it is an invitation to bid. you either take this bid or you won't show the film. He went through the bill and read parts of the requirements. He said they send a brochure, you don't get to see the film. It states who will be in the film and might have a picture of the star. He went on and listed some of the expenses of the theater owners. If you think this bill is just for the large theater owners I want you to look at the people from all over Montana who are representing the whole state. It all boils down to a matter of dollars, and many dollars are being ripped off. This bill is now present law in twenty states, including Utah, Washington and Oregon.

PROPONENTS:

LARRY FLESCH: President, Montana Association of Theater Owners. We are not trying to lower the price of their products. We employ hundreds of workers. We have the support of many Chambers of Commerce. The issue is that we want to use our own common sense, our own judgment, to determine if a movie is something we wish to present in our own communities. There are 19 states and Puerto Rico who have this bill and it is being considered by 14 more. When we deal with such giants as Columbia, our voice is like a "sob in a hurricane".

DIANA SMITH: Theater owner in Laurel. I believe that my theater could provide a modest income if we were only required to pay 35%. Last year we grossed \$40,000 and paid out \$18,000, and the

10% is the difference between income and qualifying for food stamps. If the large owners are charged 50 or 90% then we were charged 35%, but most of them are 45%. If I had to make a living from my theater I couldn't do it.

TOM HINES: Kalispell theater owner. The theaters have been owned and operated by the same family for over 60 years. We feel the bill will help small operations like our own. We have to negotiate without ever having seen the film. That is the big problem and that is what we are really addressing. It puts the small theater owner in a bad position. We are at the mercy of the company.

RICHARD SNYDER: Wolf Point Liberty Theater. I want to address the guarantee on the percentage. He explained how this would work. For \$125 I get a picture for a three day run. I pay the difference between what it grosses and what I pay. That is the difference between the guarantee and the percentage.

MARVIN MILLER: Dillon theater owner. We are not faced directly with blind bidding because we are the only theater. But it does affect us because we have to pay a guarantee on the film before we get it. He explained how it affects him. He explained how it works in Idaho.

BOB SIAS: Independent; Missoula has four theaters. Our family has been in business for 60 years. We are slowly being squeezed out of business by the film companies by blind bidding. I am just here to plead for survival. We have to bid against each other to show films. Last year we lost \$50,000 on blind bids. Missoula is the only Montana city in which there is enough competition to justify bidding. In other major markets the buyers receive a brochure from the companies explaining who is in the film and what it will be about. The supplier demands that the theater owners agree to buy for either a minimum price or percentage of the gross depending on which is higher and that the movie be booked for showing at a specific time. We are virtually being put out of business by the tyranny of powerful film companies who require us to bie for product without seeing it, and who demand exorbitant guarantees and terms. Please support HB 409, an act establishing fair trade practices in the distribution and exhibition of motion picture film.

JIM BAILEY: Hamilton, two theaters. I would very much appreciate your consideration of HB 409 at the hearing to be held on Thursday. This bill is highly important to me as a small theater owner as it could well make the difference of survival in the future. I have in the past had certain film companies send me a bid with a

picture with a C.O.D. charge unbeknownst to me on top of the freight charges. I have found that lots of times the film does not live up to my expectations. We need something that will allow us credit. It has cost me the extra expense of being a booker.

DON CAMPBELL: I have two outdoor and one indoor theater in Lewistown. We want this legislation and I ask that you do all you can to help us. As a member of the Montana Association of theater owners and an independent exhibitor, I believe the bill would benefit the exhibitors as well as the Montana movie goers. The intent of the bill is to outlaw blind bidding and the negotiations as a means of selling a film companies product. It also prohibits the film companies from placing minimum guarantees or advances on playdates. Rural Montana theaters rarely get caught up in the bidding process however, the theaters are requested to pay advances and also per capita requirements in certain areas. When larger towns are paying higher prices these same higher prices are being extended to smaller towns as well. I want to continue to provide suitable entertainment to all citizens within central Montana. With the best efforts of each and every one of us, I feel confident it will be possible. I urge your careful review and support of this legislation.

On behalf of the Montana Association of Theater TIM WARNER: Owners, I would like to clarify some terms and provisions of the bill for your consideration, because they might be confusing to persons outside the motion picture industry. I am currently employed as the Vice-president and General Manager of Theater Operators, Inc. In addition, I am employed by several independent theater owners of Montana to represent them as a film buyer. Α film buyer is an individual that acts as a broker or a go-between for the theater owner and the various film companies. Most of the theaters I represent, I do not have a financial interest in the theater properties and strictly work on a fee basis to the independent theater owner. In addition to myself, there are several other film buyers who represent various exhibitors in Montana. There are also several theater owners who represent themselves to the various film companies. The term "blind bidding" or "blind negotiating" simply means the current practice of the MPAA companies to solicit, either through bid or negotiation, playdates on their films without the exhibitor or the film buyer having seen the motion picture or its performance in other market areas. These playdates are solicited as far as a year in advance, however, most average six to eight months. In addition to having to buy blind, the current practice in the industry is to have the exhibitor guarantee a minimum dollar amount versus a percentage on the performance of a specific film in a market place. House Bill 409 would prohibit blind bidding or blind negotiation, or blind

selling of the product until it has been screened in our market area. It would also prohibit the solicitation of guaranteed film rental. In no way does it limit the film company's ability to solicit firm percentages which guarantee a film company a⁻ percentage of what the film does do in a market place.

A distributor of a motion picture is simply any person engaged in the process of renting, selling, or licensing motion pictures The main opposition to this bill is from the to exhibitors. Motion Picture Association of America which is made up of Buena Vista, Columbia, Filmways, Paramount, Twentieth Century Fox, United Artists, MGM, Universal, Warner Bros. and independent film companies. Together they comprise over 95% of the film that is available for showing. Since we are dealing with such large combined financial resources of the MPAA companies, which are in turn owned by other large conglomerates, for example, United Artists is really Trans America and Paramount is really Gulf-Western, exhibitors throughout the nation were unable to get any relief through negotiations with various companies to outlaw within the industry the practice of blind bidding and solicitation of minimum guarantees.

The exhibitors of Montana feel that we should have the right to make a business judgment, upon seeing the product, as to what percentage it is worth in our market place. And, it will also give the opportunity to determine if the subject matter is suitable for the market place, since a theme that is acceptable in New York is not necessarily acceptable in Kalispell. An example of what can happen with blind bidding was the Exorcist for a marathon play in Billings. The film rental was \$50,000, the ticket sales only totaled \$58,000 and with the other costs of operation we lost about \$50,000. They don't guarantee our investment and I don't see why we should have to guarantee theirs.

By forcing the films to be screened, it would also guarantee to the exhibitor that the product has been completed and is ready for release. A current example of this was HEAVEN'S GATE which was supposed to be released at Christmas, and is now tentatively available for April 24. The trade screening would alleviate the blind buying portion with which the exhibitor is faced. The guarantee portion of the bill would prohibit companies from forcing small independent theater owners from having to guarantee a film's success in their market place. He gave examples of other films. To put it more simply, the exhibitors of Montana feel that the film companies are entitled to a percentage that the film earns in our market place but not a guaranteed dollar amount. The trade screening and the no-guarantee portion of the bill will enable the exhibitors to either bid or negotiate on a more equitable and Copy of examples; EXHIBIT 1. reasonable basis.

PEYTON TERRY: Glasgow theater owner. I am a small independent theater owner, and although this bill directly affects only the larger markets in the state such as Billings, Helena, Great Falls and Missoula, it does have a definite effect on the price the film costs me and countless other small theater owners throughout the state. Under the present methods, our bookers are forced to buy or negotiate for these films sight unseen. I was a franchised new car and truck dealer for over 23 years and never once did I expect a customer to buy a vehicle wihtout knowing what he was buying and was encouraged to inspect it and drive it before he negotiated the price. As things are now in the industry, we as exhibitors are expected to buy a pig in a poke. We are also forced to put up large guarantees well in advance of the play dates and, if the film does not gross the amount of the guarantee, it is our loss. The bill would correct these two grossly unfair practices and put us on more equal footing with the giant conglomerates that control over 90% of the film available. This law was upheld in a supreme court case in Pennsylvania. We feel it is absolutely necessary to pass this bill without any amendments. We would very much appreciate your support in passing this bill.

LONNIE WAGNER: Billings. I ask your support for the bill.

RON REID: Bozeman. HB 409 addresses the problem of motion picture theaters, large and small, having to buy their product sight unseen. They don't have the opportunity to see what they're paying for, before entering into contractural agreements with the film company. Exhibitors are paying large sums of money to guarantee the income of the film to the distribution companies in advance of their playdates. Again, this is expected, without having the opportunity to see the product. The practice of placing guarantees on films is not limited to bidding situations or large metropolitan communities. Oftentimes the film company will require a guarantee from small isolated exhibitors. By placing these guarantees on the small town exhibitor it eliminates the possibility of him playing the film. He cannot afford to pay 75% or more for his product and stay in business.

I feel that the film companies are entitled to a guaranteed percentage of the gross on their picture, but that it is an unfair trade practice to require any exhibitor, large or small, to buy his product by blind bidding, or the forcing of guaranteed film rental. I would be happy to answer any questions.

DAN KLUSMANN: Bozeman. This bill is being introduced only after many years of fruitless negotiation with the film companies. I would hope that as you hear this bill you will keep the following points in mind.

1. The proponents of the bill are the large and small theater exhibitors of Montana.

- The opponent of the bill is the MPAA representing the film distribution companies such as Gulf-Western, Transamerica Corporation and M.C. A. Universal.
- 3. It has already passed in 19 states including some of our neighbors like Idaho, Utah, Oregon and Washington.
- 4. Without the bill it would allow an unfair practice to continue in Montana. Blind bidding and quarantees help reduce the loss or add to the profit that the film companies make on bad films. This is done at the expense of the exhibitor who is tied to terms that are often much higher than the business warrants. Good film almost always makes money for the distributor. A high bid or guarantee on a bad film has put and will continue to put small theater exhibitors out of business.

Like the neighborhood grocery stores that were replaced, your neighborhood theater will disappear too, and be replaced by chains. This is not because the chain can run them better but because they have more "clout" with which to deal with the film companies. A representative of one of the film companies once pointed out that all the theaters in the state of Montana combined to contribute less than .2% of his company's film rentals. Please talk to the theater owner in your area and vote for this bill.

FRED NICHOLS: Helena manager and a member of the Montana Association of Theater owners I am asking for your support in the passage of this bill. Film agreements between exhibitors and distributors are made by bidding for films or by negotiating for The important part of the bill is to be able to see a films. motion picture before entering into the financial agreement with the distributor. This portion states that the film companies have to screen the film in one of the ll western states in which similar legislation has passed. We feel it is only fair for the product to be seen before a financial commitment is made. A film agreement is often made as much as a year prior to the playdate of the film and after entering into the agreement, the exhibitor cannot negotiate or bid for other film that is available during the same release time. If, as happened with "HEAVENS GATE" a film is suddenly pulled from release shortly before a theater's playdate, that theater is stuck without having screen product for that time period. If, in the case of "HEAVENS GATE", the film buyer had been able to view that film before agreeing to run it, perhaps they would have seen that the film was not worth The theaters who don't buy blind often don't get the showing. Another portion of the bill would outlaw the common product. practice of theaters having to guarantee money in order to buy Many film contracts demand a guaranteed amount from the films. It often keeps the smaller owner from negotiating for owner. certain movies.

B. J. SMITH: A Dillon theater owner. I am concerned over the passage of HB 409. I am certain that you are aware of the unfairness practiced by the film companies of forcing exhibitors to bid a film without having an opportunity to screen the product. You may not be aware of the need for this bill as it relates to the smaller situation such as ours. We are affected by the bidding portion of this bill because the terms for settlement, the percentage of the gross to be paid, is usually determined by the bidding situation and is then carried down through the exhibitors. The guarantee and advance portions apply directly to us. We are, on occasion, required to post a guarantee and an advance on the settlement prior to the film company shipping the print. It hardly seems fair for a small operation such as this to be "loaning" money, interest free to companies as large as Universal Films, and others. We recently played the movie, Any Which Way You Can, and it was necessary for us to "loan" to Warner Brothers \$2500 two weeks prior to the date they were to ship the film. This was in the form of The financial investment to extablish even a small an advance. theater operation eliminates the possibility of a fly-by-night operation. The leverage is all on the side of the film companies.

DICK ENSIGN: Missoula. I am in support of this bill.

BOB JOHNSON: I am the manager of the Montana Theater in Miles City. I believe this common sense legislation is in the best interest of, not only the small theaters in Montana, but the general public as well. We are asking for an opportunity to look at a product before we buy it. We are also requesting that the unfair and unrealistic practice of guarantees, front money based on what the film companies think a town might gross, be eliminated. This bill is now law in Utah, Washington, Idaho, Oregon and 19 other states.

DOUG WILLIAMS: Bozeman. I ask your consideration in passing this bill. We need this legislation.

EDWARD (FRED) SHARP: I operate the Wilma 1 and 11 theaters in Missoula and some drive-in theaters as well. Our competition are chain operators so our position as an independent with limited financial resources places us with a blind bidding policy in Missoula as follows:

1. No screenings before pictures are sold to us, an exhibitor, to arrive at a fair market to make a bid.

2. Front money advances of \$4000 to \$50,000 on the recent movie "STAR TREK" with capital we have to borrown to be paid two weeks in advance of the opening of the playdates.

3. With the bid attraction not grossing to make up losses, and with no adjustment on money advanced to the distributors.

4. Extended playtimes from 4 to as high as 12 weeks or even more as this is required in all bids even when certain pictures after the second week show no indication to fulfill a long run engagement. The exhibitor is not permitted to pull the picture.

5. Film rentals with highs of 90% not being uncommon and very seldom lower than 70%, 1st week; 60%, 2nd week; 50%, 3rd week; 40%, 4th week and the rest of the entire run at 40%.

Summing it up, with this sight unseen policy, front money guarantees, intolerable playtimes and no adjustment when a picture fails to gross is a red profit for the exhibitor. He gave examples of movies and the costs and how much he had lost on films last year.

This is the first time in almost 60 years of operating theaters in Missoula that we were unable to pay our property taxes and current bills. This bill would give us a fair chance to stay in business.

<u>MYRON BEAN</u>: Choteau movie theater. I have been retired for several years but my wife operates the little theater at Choteau. We try to operate it in a respectable manner. This bill will have considerable effect on the price we will be forced to pay for prints. It is ridiculous that the price for a feature picture is established by the amount that is bid for a print rental, many times before the shooting has actually started. We realize that we are a very small part of the moving picture business but our survival depends to a great extent on what happens to the pictures in the larger locations. We trust that your committee will look favorably on our efforts to hold the line against unreasonable demands by the big producers.

MICHAEL CURNOW: Manager, Plaza Twin Theater, Butte. Small theater owners in Montana are currently forced to bid on motion pictures blindly without first being able to see the product they are buying. Another practice is to make the exhibitor guarantee the film company a prearranged film rent as a condition of showing the film. Often this amount is in excess of the gross receipts the exhibitor receives. We do not feel we should be compelled to unduly risk our limited resources to guarantee the profits of these big corporations, who control 95% of the pictures available to us. Similar legislation is currently law in several states and has been in effect long enough to show that it is not detrimental to film companies, and has worked well.

OPPONENTS:

DON GARRITY: Motion Picture Association of America. House Bill 409 should be defeated. It deals with the distribution and exhibition of motion picture films in the State of Montana and prohibits a long standing business practice in the film industry known as "advance bidding" or "blind bidding". It also prohibits payment of a minimum guarantee on a percentage rental. And, lastly substantial criminal penalties are inserted into the area of civil contract law. This legislation should be defeated for the following reasons.

1. Since this is a dispute between two businesses the Legislature should not become involved. Problems that arise between suppliers and purchasers of any product are best resolved in the free enterprise system. The present system has worked successfully for over 25 years.

2. This bill has absolutely no impact on the little theater owner. The only area in Montana where bidding occurs is Missoula, and that involves only one locally owned theater. EXHIBIT A.

3. Except for the occasional blockbuster picture, guarantees are not required in any area except, on occasion, Missoula. EXHBIIT A.

4. No one is forced to blind bid. Where possible, pictures are trade screened. 46% of the pictures offered in Montana last year were trade screened. On blind bid pictures, exhibitors receive summaries, names of stars and producers plus information in trade publications and film clips at numerous exhibitor trade shows. EXHIBIT B.

5. Blind bidding is currently the subject of negotiation between the exhibitors trade association and the distributors trade association. The legislature should not be used as a bargaining tool by the exhibitors in reaching a negotiated settlement of this dispute. EXHIBIT C.

6. Trade screening may cause pictures to be delayed in playing in Montana. EXHIBIT D.

7. Since 1974, over \$30,500,000 has been spent in Montana by the motion picture industry. We are spending money to attract production. Legislation which is hostile to the industry could affect this revenue. EXHIBIT E.

8. This bill has serious constitutional deficiencies, and similar bills are currently the subject of litigation in Pennsyl-vania, Ohio and Utah.

9. This bill takes away an exhibitor's freedom to blind bid on a picture or offer a guarantee even if he wants to do so.

10. There are no benefits to the movie going public of the State of Montana. If this bill is to protect the public, why not regulate the prices at the concession stand and allow a patron to pay after seeing the movie, if he or she liked the movie? What's fair for theater owners should be fair for the viewing public.

We think the motion picture industry has been a good citizen and is entitled to fair treatment from Montana government. House Bill 409 is not fair--it is punitive and unnecessary.

In conclusion, we believe that Jack Valenti, President of the Motion Picture Association of America, said it best in a speech he gave at the 1978 National Association of Theater Owners convention. "Any time you invite the government into your business to negotiate your contracts, to settle your economic differences with the people in the marketplace, you are beckoning toward a mischief whose harm you cannot imagine at this time." We would be happy to discuss this with you personally and if you have any questions, please contact us.

JAMES T. HARRISON, JR: We have given each of you a booklet and as Mr. Garrity did I will be referring to it occasionally. I would like to respond to some of the remarks made by the proponents. Some of this is just so much talk, that they are at the mercy of the conglomerates. In order for us to make money, our product has to be screened. In most areas the theaters are a monopoly. Last Christmas our company produced 14 films for the Christmas market. If you own the only theater in town then you are not at the mercy of anybody. EXHIBIT A is an example of the amount paid in Montana. You will find that many deals are adjusted down when a film does not do well. None of the small town theaters blind bid. By the time they negotiate for a film that film has already played in Billings or Great Falls. Mr. Warner buys the films for the majority of the theaters in the State of Montana.

We talk about how important it is for them to see the movie, but the owners do not see the screenings that we have in Salt Lake City. At our last screening only five people showed up to see that movie. None of the theater owners in Montana attend the screenings. Obviously if you paid \$125 for a film you aren't going to go to Salt Lake for a screening. We do not have outrageous charges. We are in the business of making motion pictures for money. We lose

tons of money on lots of pictures. Look at how much was lost on HEAVENS GATE. We have yet to realize a nickle on that film. We do not pay the freight, the theater owner pays the freight. I would like to refer for just a moment to Mr. Warners letter. He went on to mention the film EXORCIST and Mr. Warners loss on it. We are entitled to justice and fair treatment by this committee. He went on to mention other films that had been made in Montana. We don't like this bill. We think it is an unnecessary, unrealistic intrusion by government into our business. We will take into account who likes us or doesn't like us.

He read from the Democratic Platform the section on regulatory reform, and went on to talk directly to the Republican members on the committee. He then went on to talk about competition and that this bill would make it much more difficult for competition. This bill does nothing for the consumers. The motion picture industry is a substantial contributor to the Montana economy. We think that entitles us to fair treatment from Montana government. We can always take our business elsewhere.

<u>ANN GRUPP</u> also representing MPAA. I want to make a couple of points here. I don't think we have heard what blind bidding is not. For one thing, it is not prevalent in Montana. 54% of the pictures shown in Montana were trade-screened in Montana. I think another thing that blind bidding is not, is that it is not really blind. The theater owner has a lot of information on a film. She held up and passed around examples of the type of brochures sent to the theater owners. She discussed movies made from books and that theater owners knew what they were getting, when they buy a film. She went on and explained product reel and dailies and trailers and the kinds of campaigns planned for a movie. She read a letter from an Ohio owner opposing this type of legislation.

The key elements in the success of a film are the people, the director and the theme. Another thing blind bidding is not, is that it is not engaged in by more than a handful of owners. Most of them are buying a picture that has already been seen. The only place this takes place is in Missoula, and that is because of the competition. She went on to explain the difference between bidding and buying. If a film does not do well the contract is negotiated down. She made several comments about the figures the proponents had quoted as their losses. I also want to point out that this practice of blind bidding is not something new. In 1968 we discussed the problem of blind bidding, and we have continued to discuss it as late as 1975.

She discussed the Justice Department and the Consent Decree. The court found that the companies have occasionally had to have blind bidding. There are certain times that you do not have control. We are asking that you allow blind bidding on three pictures a year.

We would like to offer at this time a proposed amendment which would allow each company to blind bid up to three pictures a year. 26% of the theater owners in the United States belong to the National Association of Theater owners. She elaborated on trade screening and how it works. It doesn't seem to me that anyone is going to benefit from this bill. This kind of legislation would tend to create monopolies and thus raise the prices to consumers. We feel this is totally unreasonable government regulation. Doing away with the practice of combining minimum prices with a percentage would make it tougher for new theater opeartors to get started. Theaters have all the information they need to buy sight unseen and film makers often adjust contract prices down if a movie bombs because they want the theater owners to be happy.

CHAIRMAN HAZELBAKER commented on the fact that opponents of House Bill No. 409 mentioned the political overtones of the committee, implying that the committee used partisan politics in conducting their actions on legislation. Mr. Hazelbaker went on and said that he resented this implication and that as long as he had been serving in the legislature he had never witnessed such an exhibition before.

MR. GARRITY introduced William Krepenhopper from Denver, representing Columbia Pictures and Tom Keegan, representing the Motion Picture Association and said they would be available to answer questions.

MR. HARRISON representing the Motion Picture Association of America continued with testimony. This bill dictates new terms for contracts between motion picture distributors and theater owners and provides that the distributor and theater owner cannot agree among themselves to waive any of those terms. The bill makes it a crime, punishable by up to six months in jail and a fine of up to \$500, for a theater owner or a motion picture distributor to violate any of its provisions, on the bottom of page 2. Line 2, page 3 is very vague. He passed out a chart to the committee showing peak periods of attendance. EXHIBIT 2. You do not release a movie like "GODZILLA" on Easter. He gave other ex-He elaborated on who paid for what. Someone has to make amples. up the deficiency and the time lost.

There is a difference between actual gross and the gross of the theater, such as concessions. The monopolies are well represented here. In addressing the criminal violations, as an attorney, they ought to be amended out of here. He read from the Republican Platform, the section concerning "fine, threats and harassment" and commented that the problem is that this bill contains a criminal penalty. He gave examples that if you make certain kinds of

contracts you are a criminal. If you have a criminal statute in an area of contract law it seems an invitation to file harassment suits. House Bill 409 is an unwarranted government interference in the contracting practices of private industry. Motion picture production companies have spent over 30.5 million dollars in filming movies in Montana since 1974. The movie "HEAVENS GATE" which to date has been a financial disaster for its producer, spent some 17 million dollars in Montana. Theater owners are accusing the film makers of strong arm tactics when in most Montana markets the theaters have a monopoly situation. "If you want to play basketball they are the guys with the gymnasium. Who will pay the cost of interest on a film while you sit around and wait for a trade showing. It won't be the members of this, the theater owners, association. It will be the public."

QUESTIONS FROM THE COMMITTEE:

SENATOR REGAN: I have heard a lot of testimony about blind bidding and yet both sides agree there is very little of this. On page 3, lines 7 through 12, I would like the industry to respond. Do you have any trouble with it.

ANN GRUPP: We do not feel that the state should be able to force a guarantee. When a new theater comes into a town the company will look at the percentages. The guarantee is payable anywhere from 4 to 14 days before the picture opens.

SENATOR REGAN: It seems to me there should be the guarantee or the rental, not both.

ANN GRUPP explained the difference between the guarantee versus the minimum film rental and how it works. An owner would only have to pay the minimum \$125 rental, and the percentage if he makes more than 35% on the gross.

SENATOR BLAYLOCK: You say there is some 20 states that have similar legislation. Has the company faired badly in those states.

MR. GARRITY mentioned some of the difficulties that are now being seen in those states.

SENATOR LEE: It seems to me that what we are looking at is that there has to be a lag in here.

ANN GRUPP: Yes, there is a delay. The films are available in Idaho and also in Utah, usually before they are available here.

CHAIRMAN HAZELBAKER: Was the amendment cleared with you, Mr. Keyser.

MR. KEYSER: No, it was not. We do not want an amendment.

SENATOR REGAN: I cannot let the people from California go home with the feeling that you have. I cannot remember a meeting that has been as partisan as this one has today. I never heard that before and I don't want you to think that that is the way we operate here in Montana.

REPRESENTATIVE KEYSER: I really cannot believe the smoke that has gone on here and things that have been said. I feel blind bidding is as important as other parts of the bill. 56% of the films in Montana do come under blind bidding. Columbia Pictures has not treated Mr. Warner too well. We are talking about a whole industry and the personal attacks on Mr. Warner are not welcome We don't need an amendment. They don't trade screen pictures here. that have already been shown. They know what trade screening is, and there is always bidding and negotiations on guarantees and percentages. We want the theater owner to be able to take one or the other but not both. He commented also about the remarks made by Mr. Harrison. He also talked about the trading up and the contracts. It is true that the money is not necessary until 14 days before but they have tied up a date on the theater because of the contractual agreement. He also talked about the delay that had been referred to and said that that was not true. In the states that have blind bidding it is just the same. What if the date is tied up and the film is not made. They have passed up the chance to buy up some other films.

The Fair Trade Practice Act already has criminal penalties and Mr. Harrison knows that. We are not trying to stop any business between these people. Any existing contracts will stay in effect.

With some other general discussion the hearing closed on House Bill No. 409.

The meeting adjourned at 12:05 noon.

Frank W. Hazelbaker, Chairman

Mary Ellen Connelly, Secretary

ROLL CALL

BUSINESS and INDUSTRY COMMITTEE

47th LEGISLATIVE SESSION -- 1981

Date______/8

NAME	PRESENT	ABSENT	EXCUSED
Goodover, Pat - Vice Chairman	V		
Hazelbaker, Frank - Chairman	V		
Blaylock, Chet	V		
Boylan, Paul	/		
Dover, Harold	V.		
Kolstad, Allen	J		
Lee, Gary	V.		
Regan, Pat	J		-
- ,			

Each day attach to minutes.

COMMITTEE ON

3/12/81 DATE 4. BILL NO. 409

VISITOR'S REGISTER Check One REPRESENTING Support Oppose NAME Billingshank heattes BOZEMAN THEATRES Missoula Theatres NOM Theatsh, W.A.Smins C. Wilma Theola hrhl THEATES Thous + laus - Laurel 1____ \checkmark Movie Haus- Laurel commonwealth Theatres Misla \sim terstate anyment Inc. Any Elta Theatres Lewistown ~ ampbell ump bell \checkmark nne Mant Inlle a Win chans \checkmark The tre NIA Ô. Totsmens. 1 ~ neman umun Big Sty Cinena Hill S HOC Allestin Rozy Theatre - Manillon V , 11 Wasner Mantet 101 L óm Motion icture Assicintion 10m Tail Kn Chuntry Prot. // (Please leave prepared statement with Secretary)

COMMITTEE ON
VISITOR'S REGISTER Check One
Check One
NAME REPRESENTING Support Oppose
-
-
-

(Please leave prepared statement with Secretary)

NAME: KANE REVOP	DATE: 3/17/8/
ADDRESS: 8-180 Beverly Blud. PHONE: 213/633-2200	
PHONE: 213/633-2200	
REPRESENTING WHOM? Motion Picture Assn.	
APPEARING ON WHICH PROPOSAL: H G409	
DO YOU: SUPPORT? AMEND?	OPPOSE?
COMMENTS:	
	<u></u>

۳

.

NAME: DOW GARRITY DATE: 3-12-51
ADDRESS: 1313 11TH AUE - HELEWA, MT
PHONE: 442-5711
REPRESENTING WHOM? 10710W PICTURE ASSIN OF AMERICA
APPEARING ON WHICH PROPOSAL: 138409
DO YOU: SUPPORT? AMEND? OPPOSE?
COMMENTS:
,

ø

٠

NAME: Thomas E. Hines DATE: 3-17-81
ADDRESS: Box 977 Kalispell, MT
PHONE: 257-0307/755-4790
REPRESENTING WHOM? Anderson Theatre Co, Inc.
APPEARING ON WHICH PROPOSAL: <u>HB409</u>
DO YOU: SUPPORT? AMEND? OPPOSE?
COMMENTS :

-

۲

٠

NAME DATE: 3/13/81
ADDRESS; Bot 391 Slasger, mt
PHONE: 778-4973
REPRESENTING WHOM? Survey heart
APPEARING ON WHICH PROPOSAL: HB409
DO YOU: SUPPORT? AMEND? OPPOSE?
COMMENTS:

.

NAME :	Tim Var	r/2.~	DATE: 3/2/2/
ADDRESS:	3400110	rgen/1//pre/	
	567-212		
REPRESENTIN	NG WHOM? (1/or.)	ales Marks	Lids
APPEARING (ON WHICH PROPOSAL:_	FYD 0j	
DO YOU:	SUPPORT?	AMEND?	OPPOSE?
COMMENTS:			

¥

٠

NAME: Olim Briley DATE: 3/12/81
NAME: (IM BRILEY DATE: 3/12/8/ ADDRESS: BOX 553 HAMILICA, MM. 59840
PHONE: 3/3-233/
REPRESENTING WHOM? KEY- STALLITE THENTRES
APPEARING ON WHICH PROPOSAL: H.B. HEG
DO YOU: SUPPORT? AMEND? OPPOSE?
COMMENTS:
-
·

ŕ

•

NAME: $\begin{tabular}{lllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllllll$		3/12/81
PHONE: 232-2558 REPRESENTING WHOM? TOI APPEARING ON WHICH PROPOSAL: <u>HB409</u> DO YOU: SUPPORT? <u>X</u> AMEND? OPPOSE?	NAME: DBER OFFICION DATE:	7-7
PHONE: 232-2558 REPRESENTING WHOM? TOI APPEARING ON WHICH PROPOSAL: <u>HB409</u> DO YOU: SUPPORT? <u>X</u> AMEND? OPPOSE?	ADDRESS: MILES CITY MT	
APPEARING ON WHICH PROPOSAL: <u>HB409</u> DO YOU: SUPPORT? <u>AMEND?</u> OPPOSE?	_	
APPEARING ON WHICH PROPOSAL: <u>HB409</u> DO YOU: SUPPORT? <u>AMEND?</u> OPPOSE?	REPRESENTING WHOM? TOI	
	_	
COMMENTS :	DO YOU: SUPPORT? AMEND? OPPOSE?	
	COMMENTS:	· _ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

Ý

٠

NAME: Bot Sian	DATE: Mar. 12, 181
ADDRESS: Wilma Blog, Missourn:	
PHONE: 543-4166	
REPRESENTING WHOM? Minoula Theatres	
APPEARING ON WHICH PROPOSAL: H. B. 409	
DO YOU: SUPPORT? AMEND?	OPPOSE?
COMMENTS:	

r

•

NAME: RichAND SNyder DATE: 3-12-81
ADDRESS: WOCF POINT, MT
PHONE: 653-2089
REPRESENTING WHOM? <u>LIBERIZ</u> The the
APPEARING ON WHICH PROPOSAL: $(43, 44, 54, 54, 54, 54, 54, 54, 54, 54, 54$
DO YOU: SUPPORT? AMEND? OPPOSE?
COMMENTS:
·

é

٠

NAME: Don CAmpbell	DATE: 3 12/81
ADDRESS: 219 W. Main	
PHONE: 8-9509	
REPRESENTING WHOM? Elta Treatres	
APPEARING ON WHICH PROPOSAL: HB. 409	
DO YOU: SUPPORT? X AMEND?	OPPOSE?
COMMENTS:	
	······································

,

٠

NAME: LIARRY FLESCH	DATE: 3/12/31
ADDRESS: 822 HILL SHELBY , www.	
PHONE: 434 - 2463	
REPRESENTING WHOM? INTERSTATE AMUSEMENTS	Inc.
APPEARING ON WHICH PROPOSAL: 1/ # 409	
DO YOU: SUPPORT? YES AMEND?	OPPOSE?
COMMENTS:	·
	د.
·	

¥

NAME :	Riow Smith	DATE: 3/12/81
ADDRESS:	Aline Smith	
PHONE :	628-8393	
REPRESENTIN	NG WHOM? Marie Mans - Laurel	
APPEARING C	ON WHICH PROPOSAL: H13 409	
DO YOU: S	SUPPORT? AMEND?	OPPOSE?
COMMENTS:		
······································		

٠

.

On Page 3, line 6:

After the word "bidding." Insert: Notwithstanding the foregoing, a distributor may blind bid no more than three pictures per year.

ExHibi



March 6, 1981

Senator Pat Goodover, Vice Chairman Business & Industry Committee Montana Senate Helena, MT 59601

Dear Senator Goodover:

I am writing to you on behalf of the Montana Association of Theatre Owners, as the Chairman of the committee for the passage of H.B. #409, An Act Establishing Fair Trade Practices for the Distribution and Exhibition of Motion Picture Films.

As a Film Buyer who represents several of the independent theatre exhibitors in the State, I am very aware of both the blind bidding and the guarantee portions of the current practice in selling film and what it is doing both to the small and large exhibitors in the State of Montana.

We are in a real David & Goliath struggle because not only is the independent theatre owner up against companies such as Gulf+Western, Transamerica, Warner Brothers, Buena Vista, Columbia, Filmways, MCA-Universal, etc., but their combined strength in the motion picture business is formed under MPAA, or Motion Picture Association of America. Together they control approximately 95% of the film available to the exhibitors for purchase.

The current practice in the industry is to force exhibitors to buy totally blind either by bidding for the product or by negotiating for it. The totally blind buying substantially influences and hurts the larger markets in Montana such as Senate Members March 6, 1981 Page Two

Billings, Great Falls, Kalispell, Missoula, Helena, and Butte but it also has a very significant impact on the price to the smaller theatres throughout Montana since the price of film to the small towns is substantially based on the larger markets in the area.

What a portion of the Bill basically states is simply that they have to screen the motion picture in one of the eleven Western states that currently has anti-blind bidding legislation. It is simply to give the exhibitors in Montana the opportunity to see the product before they have to make financial arrangements as to the purchase of that product. Ours is probably one of the few industries that totally blind buying is in effect.

The other major portion of the Bill is to outlaw film companies from demanding guarantees up front for motion picture product. This portion of the Bill is vital both for the large and small towns in the State and I am enclosing some examples as to the impact that the guarantee portion can have on the price of motion pictures.

The first example is that in Billings, Montana, Theatre Operators, Inc. put up a guarantee of \$50,000 on THE EXORCIST. The picture only grossed \$58,000. The following is a chart showing what we should have paid on a percentage basis.

Weeks 1-3	Gross \$35,000 x 70% = \$24,500
Weeks 4-6	Gross $12,000 \times 60\% = 7,200$
Weeks 7-9	Gross \$11,000 x 50% = \$ 5,500
	Total % Payment \$37,200 or 64%

If we had just paid the percentage, the film rental would have been 64% for the 9-week period. However, because of the guarantee, the film rental for the 9-week period was 87%. Also, in addition to the \$12,800 loss in film rental, we also lost our weekly house expense of \$3,000, or a total of \$27,000 for the 9-week period bringing the total loss to approximately \$50,000 on a picture which Warner Brothers Communications made millions.

~•• ·

Senate Members March 6, 1981 Page Three

A second example is that in Bozeman, Montana, we paid a \$25,000 guarantee on THE EXORCIST and the picture only grossed \$23,000. The following chart shows the percentage we should have paid.

Weeks 1 & 2 Gross \$14,000 x 70% = \$9,800Weeks 3 & 4 Gross \$ 6,000 x 60% = \$3,600Weeks 5 & 6 Gross \$ 3,000 x 50% = \$1,500. Total % Payment \$14,900 or 65%

However, because we had paid a guarantee on the motion picture, of \$25,000, we ended up paying 109% in film rental.

A third example is that in Missoula, Montana we paid a guarantee of \$10,000 on THE TRIBUTE. In three weeks the picture only grossed \$6800. The following chart shows the percentage we should have paid.

> Weeks 1 & 2 Gross \$5,000 x 70% = \$3,500 Week 3 Gross \$1,800 x $60\% = \frac{$1,080}{$4,580 \text{ or } 68\%}$ Total % Payment \$4,580 or 68%

However, because we had paid a guarantee of \$10,000 on the picture, we ended up paying 147%.

In some small communities for which I buy such as Cut Bank, Conrad, Shelby, Hamilton and Miles City, it is not uncommon for the film company to place a \$1000 guarantee on a motion picture. If a motion picture only grossed \$1500, the picture would normally be settled on a percentage basis at 35% or \$525. However, because of the guarantee portion of the contract the film rental percentage changes to 67%.

As exhibitors in the State, we feel that the film companies are entitled to a guaranteed percentage of the market place. However, we do not feel it is our responsibility that they are entitled to a guarantee regardless of the performance of the picture in that market area. Senate Members March 6, 1981 Page Four

There are several factors that can alter the performance of a motion picture in the Montana market - weather, other activities in the town, the theme of the motion picture might not be popular with the movie patrons in Montana, etc.

<u>، ب</u>

When you consider the size of Gulf+Western, Trans America, etc., expecting the independent exhibitors, whose financial resources are very limited to guarantee profits in the market place, we feel this is totally unreasonable and an unacceptable practice in the State.

Also, another factor that the film companies use the guarantee for is that it gives them the ability to eliminate several small theatre exhibitors from playing their product on the basis that if the small theatre exhibitor will not pay the guarantee, they will not sell them the motion picture; thereby giving the distributor a convenient excuse for not serving the town.

In larger situations, it is not uncommon for the film company to bid or negotiate for a picture as much as a year in advance. Then, upon signing the contract, the exhibitor is excluded from bidding or negotiating for other product that is available for that play time, only then to have the film company decide to pull the picture from the market place at that time.

An example of this is that we were scheduled to play HEAVEN'S GATE in Missoula and Billings at Christmas and the film company notified us in the latter part of November that the picture would not be available even though we had already committed the screen play time. HEAVEN'S GATE is a current example; however, this is very common practice and includes such pictures as the original SUPERMAN or APOCALYPSE NOW.

The bill is currently law in Utah, Washington, Idaho and Oregon and it is working very well. In addition to these states in our area, it is law in a total of nineteen (19) states plus the territory of Puerto Rico. The law has been Senate Members March 6, 1981 Page Five

in effect in some of these states as much as three or four years and it is working extremely well for both the large and small towns and it has not had an adverse impact on the exhibitors of those states nor has it been financially detrimental to the film companies since some of the best stocks on the market are film company stocks these past few years.

This bill has the total support of every exhibitor in the State of Montana even though some sections of it were stricken by the lobbying efforts of the MPAA in the House. We feel, as exhibitors in Montana, it is absolutely necessary that this Bill not be further ammended even though we do realize that there is a substantial lobbying effort on the part of the MPAA to do so.

I am sure that you will be hearing from your local exhibitors regarding their support of the Bill, but the reason for my lengthy letter is to help you more closely understand various facets of the Bill and why its passage is necessary to the survival of the theatre owners of Montana.

Thanking you in advance for your time and consideration.

Kindest regards,

Tim C. Warner Montana Assoc. of Thea. Owners

TW/bp

U111C - U فشاهدت

within the United States. .ie accompanying graph deits the weekly b.o. gyrations. Weekly data over the 12-year period 1969-80 were utilized, and ticket price inflation has been removed in order to eliminate distortion. A "normal" 52-week oar has been utilized for stanrdized comparisons.

The following comments should be kept in mind when interpreting the graph:

The final week of a year that is, the week containing New Year's Day — has been given an arbitrary numerical value of 1.0. (It could be assigned any numerical value, but using 1.0 makes a convenient benchmark reference when comparing weekly b.o. performance throughout the following year until business again climbs back

.

• The post-Easter weeks represent another, and deeper, b.o. business soars, but b.o. then rapidly (though briefly declines until the waves of summer vacation school closings and business vacations periods propel business to another relative high for the year around July 4.

C After July 4, summer business experiences a slight midsummer decline before rising again in late July-early August, followed by another mild sag until the Labor Day weekend climax of that season. (Labor Day week is consistently defined as the last week of August, since it properly belongs at the end of the summer season.)

• The sharp September slump bottoms out late 👘 .ā. month, followed by a stable,

weeks since Jan. 1 and/or the length of time between the leadsag. Memorial Day weekend, ing and trailing edges of an intra-year seasonal swing. (It may just be the accident of the calendar, of course, but the empirical evidence invites further investigation into a recurring phenomenon which manifests such an intriguing, if rough, periodicity.)

ExHiBit

 In eye-balling the relation of any week's business to the reference week, it's a simple matter of noting the scale. For example, Easter period business is at a level approximately 70% of year-end holiday business; the early-December low is approximately 35% of what business will be two-to-three weeks later.

In figuring out the relation ... een two periods within the year, the arithmetic is still simple. For example, the mid-linky



in late December to the reference point.)

 The weekly b.o. profile within a year represents total boxoffice for all films. Thus, in any given season, the various peaks and valleys will eliter be more extreme (or less so), depending on who has the hit (or flop) films in release at that time and from which distributors.

 The numbers on the left ·ertical scale represent statistical orders of magnitude relative o the benchmark value of 1.0. Thus, in a particular year, the relative weekly values corresponding to a selected weet might be higher or lower; however, the shape of the year's business would not differ markedly. (By using 12 years of inta, good to fure and had years

slightly rising trend through October and November. But just before Thanksgiving week, there's a tapering off before the holiday upturn.

 Next come the worst weeks of the year - early December, when business has fallen to its lowest relative point. This situation changes quite marked . 83 Christmas approaches, with b.o. levels tripling between the second week of the month and New Year's Day week.

An interesting pattern of oscillation is evident, in that a straight ascending line may be drawn between the successive seasonal highs, and a straight descending line can be drawn

.....

nal low is approximately 96: 56% of New Year's business (0.5 on the scale), and the Memorial Day weekend business rises to about 75% of New Year's b.o. (0.75 or, the scale). So, the jump between mid-May and Memorial Day is about 50% (i.e., going from 0.5 to 0.75 represents an upward move of 0.25, or half of 0.5).

Similarly, the drop between Labor Day week (about 0.77 on the . cale) to the September bettom (0.45 on the scale) is on the order of 42% (from 0.77 to 0.45 is a drop of 0.32 from 0.77, about 42%).

In drawing conclusions m this recurring annual pro-(Continued on Page 12, Column 4)

......
Movie Haus

D&D ENTERPRISES

BOX 546 - 13 FIRST AVE. - LAUREL, MT. 59044 - (406) 628-8393

Dione Smith

March 9, 1981

Donna Gilpatrich

Senator Frank Hazelbaker Montana Senate Helena, Mt. 59601

Dear Senator Hazelbaker:

I am writing you to ask for your support of HB-409 prohibiting blind bidding in theatres.

As a small theatre owner, I feel this practice is grossly unfair. No other business that I know of is asked to bid on something before it can be seen. This is detrimental to the quality of movies we have available as well as detrimental to the theatre owner as to how we have to run our business.

In fighting this practice we are up against the giants of the business world and the only hope we have is to have a law on our side.

Sincerely,

Dione Smith



GENERAL OFFICES: WILMA BUILDING P.O. BOX 7277 MISSOULA, MONTANA 59807 TELEPHONE: (406) 543-4166

FILM BUYING AND BOOKING OFFICES: W.A. SIMONS AMUSEMENT CO. WALKER THEATRE SERVICE 350 South 4th East Suite 222 W Salt Lake City, Utah 84111 (801) 521-0335

EDWARD SHARP PRESIDENT

ROBERT V. SIAS EXECUTIVE VICE-PRESIDENT



HANSON-SIMONS CO.

OWNING AND OPERATING THE WILMA BUILDING, MISSOULA, MONTANA

W. A. SIMONS AMUSEMENT CO. AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

OWNING AND OPERATING THE W.A. SIMONS CIRCUIT OF MOTION PICTURE THEATRES MONTANA AND IDAHO

March 9, 1981

Hon. Pat Goodover Montana State Senate Helena. MT 59601

Dear Senator Goodover:

We are independent Montana motion picture exhibitors who operate four theatres in Missoula and whose company has paid taxes in Montana for the past 60 years.

We are virtually being put out of business by the tyranny of powerful film companies who require us to bid for product without seeing it (blind bidding) and who demand exorbitant guarantees and terms.

Please let us stay in business.

Please support H. B. 409, an act establishing fair trade practices in the distribution and exhibition of motion picture film.

Grateful

RCXY-STARLITE THEATERS J BAILEY PO BOX 553 HAMILTON MT 59840



HB409 Yes

4-0222625068 03/09/81 ICS IPMMTZZ CSP HELB 4063632336 MGM TOMT HAMILTON MT 78 03-09 1238P EST

SENATOR PAT GCODOVER STATE CAPITOL HELENA MT 59601

DEAR SENATOR AS A SMALL TOWN THEATER OWNER I WOULD VERY MUCH APPRECIATE YOUR CONSIDERATION OF HOUSE BILL 409 AT THE HEARING TO BE HELD ON THURSDAY MARCH 12

THIS BILL IS HIGHLY IMPORTANT TO ME AS A SMALL THEATER OWNER AS IT COULD WELL MAKE THE DIFFERENCE OF SURVIVAL IN THE FUTURE I THANK YOU VERY MUCH FOR YOUR CONSIDERATION SINCERELY JIM BAILEY GWNER MANAGER ROXY-STARLITE THEATERS HAMILTON MT

1241 EST

, MGMCCMP MGM



SURVANT THEATRE WEST DRIVE-IN THEATRE

Box 391 – Ph. (406-228-2932) GLASGOW, MONTANA 59230 MARCH 10, 1981

SENATOR PAT GOODOVER STATE CAPITAL HELENA. MT 59601

DEAR SENATOR, GOODOVER

I AM WRITING TO ENLIST YOUR SUPPORT IN PASSING HB No. 409, AN ACT TO ESTABLISH FAIR TRADE PRACTICES FOR THE DISTRIBUTION AND EXHIBITION OF MOTION PICTURE FILMS.

I AM A SMALL INDEPENDENT THEATRE OWNER, AND ALTHOUGH THIS BILL DIRECTLY EFFECTS ONLY THE LARGER MARKETS IN THE STATE SUCH AS BILLINGS, HELENA, GREAT FALLS AND MISSOULA, IT DOES HAVE A DEFINITE EFFECT ON THE PRICE THE FILM COSTS ME AND COUNTLESS OTHER SMALL FAMILY THEATRE OWNERS THROUGHOUT OUR STATE.

UNDER THE PRESENT ESTABLISHED METHODS, OUR BOOKERS ARE FORCED TO BUY OR NEGOTIATE FOR THESE FILMS SIGHT UNSEEN. IN THE INDUSTRY, IT IS KNOWN AS BLIND BIDDING. ALL THAT HB No. 409 DOES IS TO GIVE THE EXHIBITORS AND THEIR BOOKERS A CHANCE TO SEE THE FILMS BEFORE THEY NEGOTIATE THE TERMS.

I WAS A FRANCHISED NEW CAR AND TRUCK DEALER FOR OVER 23 YEARS AND NEVER ONCE DID I EXPECT A CUSTOMER TO BUY A VEHICLE WITHOUT KNOWING WHAT HE WAS BUYING AND WAS ENCOURAGED TO INSPECT IT AND DRIVE IT BEFORE HE NEGOTIATED THE PRICE. AS THINGS ARE NOW IN THE MOTION PICTURE INDUSTRY, WE, AS EXHIBITORS ARE EXPECTED TO BUY A PIG IN A POKE. WE ARE ALSO FORCED TO PUT UP LARGE GUARANTEES WELL IN ADVANCE OF THE PLAY DATES AND, IF THE FILM DOES NOT GROSS THE AMOUNT OF THE GUARANTEE, IT IS OUR LOSS.

THIS BILL WOULD CORRECT THESE TWO GROSSLY UNFAIR PRACT-ICES AND PUT US ON MORE EQUAL FOOTING WITH THE GIANT CONGLO-MERATES THAT CONTROL OVER 90 PERCENT OF THE FILM AVAILABLE TO US AS EXHIBITORS. THIS BILL IS PRESENTLY LAW IN THE NEIGHBOR-ING STATES OF WASHINGTON, IDAHO, UTAH AND OREGON. THIS LAW WAS ALSO UPHELD IN A SUPREME COURT CASE IN PENNSYLVANIA. THIS BILL IS SUPPORTED BY THE MONTANA ASSOCIATION OF THEATRE OWNERS, WHICH REPRESENTS EVERY THEATRE OWNER IN THE STATE.

WE FEEL IT IS ABSOLUTELY NECESSARY TO PASS THIS BILL WITHOUT ANY AMENDMENTS.

WE REALIZE THAT THE M.P.A.A. IS MOUNTING A POWERFUL AND VERY COSTLY LOBBYING EFFORT TO DEFEAT US. HOWEVER, I MIGHT POINT OUT, THAT WHILE THIS BILL WAS PASSING THE HOUSE IT WAS SUP-PORTED BY A LARGE REPRESENTATION OF THEATRE OWNERS WHO ARE ALL MONTANANS, TAXPAYERS AND VOTERS IN OUR STATE. MEANWHILE, OUR OPPOSITION DID NOT HAVE THE SUPPORT OF ONE MONTANA CITIZEN EXCEPT FOR TWO HELENA ATTORNEYS AND SEVERAL HIGH-PAID LOBBY-ISTS FROM OUT OF STATE.

MYSELF, ALONG WITH COUNTLESS OTHER THEATRE OWNERS THROU-GHOUT THE STATE WOULD GREATLY APPRECIATE YOUR SUPPORT IN PASS-ING THIS BILL.

THANKING YOU VERY KINDLY FOR YOUR TIME AND CONSIDERATION, I REMAIN,

YOURS TRULY,

zucel

P.O. Box 977 Kalispell, Montana 59901 March 2, 1981

Hon. Pat. Goodover Capital Station Helena, MT 59601

Senator:

My family has operated the movie theatres in Kalispell for over 60 years. Blind bidding and it's aftermath are threatening the viability of large and small operators across the nation.

I will not go into the details of the problem for there are more eloquent spokesman for the position than myself.

I urge you to carefully consider HB 409 and the tremendous outside effort being put forth to defeat it. If you understand the practice you should be able to support HB 409.

Thank you,

non E. Hiney

Thomas E. Hines

"The Flathead's entertainment leader for 60 years"





THEATRE OPERATORS INC.

ADDRESS REPLY TO:

THEATRE OPERATORS, INC. General Offices P. O. Box 1629 Bozeman, Montana 59715

Phones: Film Dept. 587-1251 Accounting 586-1571

Senator Pat Goodover State Capital Building Helena Montana 59601

Re: H.B. #409, An Act Establishing Fair Trade Practices For The Distribution and Exhibition Of Motion Picture Films.

March 9, 1981

I would like to ask your support in passing the above bill. House Bill #409, addresses the problem of motion picture theatres, large and small, havng to buy their product sight unseen. They don't have the opportunity to see what they're paying for, before entering into contractural agreements with the film distribution companies. Theatre exhibitors are also paying large sums of money to guarantee the income of the film to the distribution companies in advance of their playdates. Again, this is expected, without having the opportunity to see the product.

The practice of placing guarantees on films is not limited to bidding situations or large metropolitan communities. Often times the film companies will require a guarantee from small isolated exhibitors, making it virtually impossible for them (the exhibitors) to exhist. By placing these guarantees on the small town exhibitor it eliminates the possibility of him playing the film. He cannot afford to pay 75% or more for his product and stay in business.

I feel that the film companies are entitled to a guaranteed percentage of the gross on their picture, but that it is an unfair trade practice to require any exhibitor, large or small, to buy his product by blind bidding, or the forcing of guaranteed film rental.

Your cooperation in passing H.B. #409, without deletions will help to correct these unfair practices. I would be happy to respond to any questions you may have regarding this all important bill, and I'm looking forward to meeting with you this week in Helena.

Sincerely, The -5 Ron Reid, City Mgr. Theatre Operators Inc. Bozeman, Mt. 59715

March 9, 1981

MEMBERS OF THE MONTANA STATE SENATE HELENA, MT 59601

Dear Senator:

H.B. #409 'AN ACT ESTABLISHING FAIR TRADE PRACTICES FOR THE DISTRIBUTION AND EXHIBITION OF MOTION PICTURE FILMS' will be coming before you in the near future for a vote.

This bill which would forbid the practice of 'blind bidding' is a bill that is in the interest of Montanans and is being introduced to the legislature only after several years of fruitless negotiation with the film companies.

As you are approached by the six lobbyists hired by the Motion Picture Association of America I would hope that you would keep the following points in mind:

- 1. The proponents of the bill are the large and small theatre exhibitors of Montana.
- 2. The opponent of the bill is the MPAA representing the film distribution companies such as Gulf+Western, Transamerica Corporation and M.C.A. Universal.
- 3. THE BILL IS GOOD LEGISLATION! It has already been passed in 19 states including some of our neighbors like Idaho, Utah, Oregon and Washington. The Montana House of Representatives also passed it by a large margin.
- 4. If the bill were to be defeated it would allow an unfair practice to continue in Montana. Blind bidding and guarantees help reduce the loss or add to the profit that the film companies make on 'bad' films. This is done at the expense of the exhibitor who is tied to terms that are often much higher than the business warrants. 'Good' film almost always make money for the distributor. A high bid or guarantee on a 'bad' film has put and will continue to put some small theatre exhibitors out of business.

Like the neighborhood grocery stores that were replaced by Supermarket chains, the small local cafes who gave way to the 'fast food' chains... so shall your neighborhood theatres disappear and give way to theatre chains. This is not because the chain can run them better but because they have more 'clout' with which to deal with the film companies. I find it incomprehensible that a proprietor of a small theatre in a Laurel or a Dillon has an advantage over Transamerica Corporation. Even a chain such as TOI fades in comparison to the Conglomerates controlling the film Companies. A representative of one of these film companies once pointed out that all the theatres in the state of Montana combined to contribute less than .2% of his company's film rentals.



ADDRESS REPLY TO: CIRCUS TWIN THEATRE 3010 NO: MONTANA P. O. BOX 5599 HELENA. MONTANA 59601 PHONE 405442/5328

Senator

Montana Senate Helena, Montana 59601

Dear Senator:

As the manager of the Helena, Montana movie theatres and as a member of the Montana Association of Theatre Owners, I am writing to urge your support for the passage of House Bill #409, which will soon be heard by the Business and Industry Committee of the Senate. This bill is an Act Establishing Fair Trade Practices for the Distribution and Exhibition of Motion Picture Films.

HEATRE OPERATORS INC.

Film agreements between exhibitors and distributors are made by bidding for films or by negotiating for films. Currently, initial film agreements are made without the theatre's film representative being able to view the film or many times, even be aware of subject matter or stars of the film. This practice is known as "Blind Bidding" and is comparable to buying a new car without being able to see the size, color, number of wheels, etc. This is an important part of this bill, to be able to see a motion picture before entering into the financial agreement with the distributor.

This portion of the bill states that the film companies have to screen the film in one of the ll western states in which similar legislation has passed. The Montana Theatre Owners feel that it is only fair for the product to be seen before a financial commitment is made.

Often times, a film agreement is made as much as a year prior to the playdate of the film and is bought blind. After entering into the agreement, the exhibitor cannot negotiate or bid for other film that is available during the same release time. If, as happened with "Heaven's Gate", a film is suddenly pulled from release shortly before a theatre's playdate, that theatre is stuck without having screen product for that time period because the quality product is no longer available. If, in the case of "Heaven's Gate", the film buyer had been able to view that film before agreeing to run it, perhaps they would have seen that the film was not worth showing. "Blind Bidding" is currently a common practice in the industry and the theatres who don't buy blind often times don't get the product.

The other major portion of the bill would outlaw the common practice of theatres having to guarantee money in order to play films. Currently, many film contracts demand a guaranteed amount of money from the theatre owner. This practice has many negative effects on the exhibitor and often times excludes the smaller theatre owners from negotiating for certain movies. In closing I would only ask that you do one thing before deciding whether r not to vote for H.B. #409. PLEASE talk to the theatre exhibitor or exhibitors from your district.

Your support of H.B. #409 will be appreciated!

Sincerely,

usmann Dan Klusmann

TOI



ADDRESS REPLY TO: CIRCUS TWIN THEATRE 3010 NO. MONTANA P. O. BOX 5599 HELENA. MONTANA 59601 PHONE 406-442-6328

In several Montana towns recently, the guarantees made to the distributor have been in excess of the total gross on the film, resulting in a loss for the theatres in which the films were shown. This has happened not only in large Montana towns but also in many smaller towns where guarantees are commonplace.

In our communities, many factors such as the weather, sporting events or other activities and the subject matter of some of the current films can adversely affect the performance of a motion picture. Partly because of these factors influencing our business, we feel that we shouldn't have to guarantee to a film distributor but that they are entitled to a fair share of what a film grosses based on a percentage.

This bill is currently law in 23 states including Idaho, Washington, Utah and Oregon, and is working well. The bill has not had a adverse effect on exhibitors or on distributors and is something that we really need.

This is a case of large film companies such as MCA-Universal, Transamerica, Gulf & Western, etc., having an unfair advantage over mostly small, independent theatre owners. The distributors certainly do not need the advantage.

Each and every one of our organization urges you to support this bill as it is crucial to the Theatre Industry in Montana.

If I can answer any questions regarding this subject, please call me locally at my office between 9:00 AM and 4:30 PM.

Thank you very much for your time in regard to this correspondence.

Respectfully Yours,

Fred Nicholls Manager Theatre Operators Inc. Helena, Montana



March 9, 1981

Senator Pat Goodover Montana Senate Helena, MT 59601

Dear Senator Goodover

I am writing to you in concern over the passage of H.B. #409, an act establishing Fair Trade Practices for the Distribution and Exhibition of Motion Picture Films.

I am certain that you are aware of the unfairness practiced by the film companies of forcing exhibitors to bid a film without having an opportunity to screen the product. You may not be aware of the need for this bill as it relates to the smaller situation such as ours.

We are affected by the bidding portion of this bill because the terms for settlement, (the percentage of the gross to be paid) is usually determined by the bidding situation and is then carried down through the exhibitors.

The guarantee and advance portions apply directly to us. We are, on occasion, required to post a guarantee and/or an advance on the settlement prior to the film company shipping the print. It hardly seems fair for a small operation such as this to be "loaning" money, interest free, to companies as large as Universal Films, Gulf & Western, Buena Vista, etc. We recently played the movie, Any Which You Can; it was necessary for us to "loan" to Warner Bros. \$2,500.00, two weeks prior to the date they were to ship the film. This was in the form of an advance. Goodover

The financial investment necessary to establish even a small theatre operation eliminates the possibility of a fly-by-night operation. The leverage is all on the side of the film companies.

-2-

Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely \mathcal{L} $\int_{\mathcal{I}_{n}} \overline{\mathcal{I}_{n}}$ B. J. Smith



THEATRE OPERATORS INC.

ADDRESS REPLY TO: MONTANA THEATRE 905 MAIN ST. P. O. BOX 671 MILES CITY, MONTANA 59301 PHONE 232-2958

March 8, 1981

Senator Pat Goodover Montana Senate Helena, Montana

Near Senator Goodover,

I am writing to ash for your support for the passage of HB 40° Blind Bidding Bill, for the motion picture theaters in Montana. I believe this common sense legislation is in the best interest of, not only the small theaters in Montana, but the general public as well.

We are asking for an opportunity to look at a product before we buy it. We are also requesting that the unfair and unrealistic practice of guaranties (front money based on what the film companies think a town might gross) be eliminated.

This bill is now law in Utah, Washington, Idaho, Cregon and nineteen other states.

"our consideration of the above would be greatly appreciated.

Respectfully. Robert Johnson (ity Manager



THEATRE OPERATORS INC.

March 7, 1981

ADDRESS REPLY TO: MONTANA THEATRE 905 MAIN ST. P. O. BOX 671 MILES CITY, MONTANA 59301 PHONE 232-2958

Senator Frank Hazelbaker Montana Senate Helena, Montana

Dear Senator,

I am writing to you to ask for your support for the passage of HB409-Blind Bidding Bill, for the motion picture theatres in Montana. I beleive that this common sense legislation is in the best interest of not only the small theatres in Montana, but the general public as well.

All we are asking for is an opportunity is at least look at a product before we buy it. We are also asking that the unfair and un-realistic practice of guarantee's (front money based on what the film company's think a town might gross) be eliminated.

This bill is now law in Utah, Washington, Idaho and Oregon and 19 other states.

I would appreciate your consideration on the above.

Respectfully 1c

Robert Johnson City Mgr. TOI Miles City

RJ:



GENERAL OFFICES: WILMA BUILDING P.O. BOX 7277 MISSOULA, MONTANA 59807 TELEPHONE: (406) 543-4166

FILM BUYING AND BOOKING OFFICES: W.A. SIMONS AMUSEMENT CO. WALKER THEATRE SERVICE 350 South 4th East Suite 222 W Salt Lake City, Utah 84111 (801) 521-0335

> Hon. Pat Go**dd**oover, **F**ice ^Chairman Montana State Senate Helena, Montana 59801

Dear Mr. Goodover :

There is a scheduled Senate Meeing for Montana Theatre Owners, Thursday, March 12th at 10AM re: passage of H. B. 409, an act establishing Fair Trade Practices for the Distribution and Exhibition of Motion Picture Films.

I operate the Wilma 1 and 11 theatres, the Roxy and the Go West Drive in theatres in Missoula, Our competition are the Mann Theatre Circuit, one of the largest chain operators in the U.S., the Commonwealth Theatres out of Denver with a large number of theatres and TOL of Bozeman a smaller group of some 40 theatres all of which through their holdings can maintain a steady cash flow of revenue.

Cur position as an Independent with limited financial resources places us with a blind bidding policy in Missoula as follows:

1. No screepings before pictures are sold to us an exhibitor to arrive at a fail market to make a bid.

2. Front money advances of \$4,000 to \$50,000 on the recent movie STAR TREK with capital we have to borrow to be paid two weeks in advance of the opening of the playdates in our theatres.

3. With the bid attraction not grossing makeup the losses with no adjustment on money advanced to the distributors.

4. Extended playtimes from 4 to as high as 12 weeks or even more as this is required in all bids even when certain pictures after the second week show no indication to fullfill a long run engagement. The exhibitor is not permitted pull the picture.

5. Film rentals with hight op 90% not being uncommon and very seldom lower than 70% lst week, 60% 2nd week, 50% 3rd week, 40% 4th week and the rest of the entire run at 40%.

EDWARD SHARP

ROBERT V. SIAS

SHARP-SIAS ENTERPRISES:

HANSON-SIMONS CO.

OWNING AND OPERATING THE WILMA BUILDING, MISSOULA, MONTANA

W. A. SIMONS AMUSEMENT CO. AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

OWNING AND OPERATING THE W.A. SIMONS CIRCUIT OF MOTION PICTURE THEATRES MONTANA AND IDAHO

March 9, 1981

Page 2- Hon Pat Goodover, Vice Chairman

March 9, 1981

Summing it up with this sight unseen policy, front money gurantees, intolerable playtimes and no adjustmnet when a picture fails to gross is a red profit for the exhibitor.

For example in 1980 the Wilma Theatre bid three pictures, GILD-ALIVE, ROUGH CUT, and ERCNCO FILLY with losses of over \$\vertarrow 45,000 when these attractions failed at the boxoffice. Why did we bid? We were forced to take a chance in order to have pictures to shown on our screens. GILD+ALIVE \$10,000, <u>hough out</u> \$\vertarrow 10,000 and BRONCO FILLY \$7,500. These pictures did not gross enough to make guarantees or pay our house expanses. We have not made any operating profit in the past five years to justify a \$45,000 loss in 1980 and have been running in the red in Missoula with this blind bidding situation existing.

I will further state that for the first time in almost 60 years of the W. A. Simon's Company operating theatres in Missoula that this is the first year we were unable to pay our property taxes and current bills.

House bill 409 hr favorable passed would give us some fair chance to stay in business.

I would appreciate your help in approving this in committee as well as your vote on the Senate floor.

Respectfully,

Roxy Theatre Chotsau, Montana March 8, 1981

Senator Pat Goodover Great Falls, Montana

Dear Mr. Goodover:

I have been retired for several years but my wife, with my moral support, operates the little theatre at Choteau. We try to operate it in a respectable manner.

There is a bill coming up in the Senate this week, House Bill No. 409 on the subject of Blind Bidding. This bill is nowlaw in Utah, Washington, Idaho and Oregon and is working well. It is also the law in nineteen other states in addition to those close to Montana.

It is important to us that it pass the Senate as it will have considerable effect on the price we will be forced to pay for prints. It is ridiculous that the price for a feature picture is established by the amount that is bid for a print rental, many times before the shooting has actually started.

We realize that we are certainly a very small part of the moving picture business but our survival depends to a great extent on what happens to the pictures in the larger locations.

We trust that your committee on Business & Industry as well as the Senate as a whole will look favorably upon our efforts to hold the line against unreasonable demands by the big producers.

Respectfully yours.

Myron E. Bean Roxy Theatre Choteau, Mont. 59422



THEATRE OPERATORS INC.

ADDRESS REPLY TO-

PLAZA TWIN THEATRES P. O. Box 3453 BUTTE, MONTANA 59701 Phone 406-494-3341

March 9, 1981

Senator Pat Goodover Montana Senate Melena, Montana 59601

Dear Senator Goodover,

This letter is to enlist your support of H.B. 409, An Act Establishing Fair Trade Practices for the Distribution and Exhibition of Motion Ficture Films.

small theatre owners in montana currently are forced to bid on motion pictures blindly without first being able to see the product they are buying. Another practice currently being used by film companies is to make the exhibitor guarantee the film company a prearranged film rent as a condition of showing the film. Often this amount is in excess of the gross receipts the exhibitor receives.

Although exhibitors are not opposed to film companies receiving their fair share of a pictures gross, we do not feel we should be compelled to unduly risk cur limited resources to guarantee the profits of such corporations as MCA-Universal, Columbia, Filmways, Buena Vista, Transamerica, Gulf-Western, who with others in the motion Picture Association of America (MPAA), control the distribution of 95% of the motion pictures available to exhibitors. A portion of the bill simply states that an exhibitor be allowed to view a motion picture in one of eleven western states that currently has anti-blind bidding legislation, before that exhibitor has to make the financial arrangements on the picture.

The other major portion of the bill would end the practice of the film companies demanding up front guarantees on pictures. As previously stated these pictures may not gross even enough to cover this guarantee, little alone the rising costs of doing business which every exhibitor faces.

Similar legislation is currently law in states in our area such as Utah, Washington, Idaho, and Oregon in addition to 19 other states and Puerto Rico. In some states the law has been in effect for three or four years and has worked well in both large and small towns. This has not been detrimental to film companies-whose stocks in recent years have been some of the best on the market.

This bill has my support as well as the support of every exhibitor in Montana, although it has already been amended in the House through lobbying efforts of the MPAA. We feel it is imperative that the Senate not ammend the bill further, if motion picture exhibition is to remain a viable business in Montana.

Thank you in advance for your time and consideration of our position. Your support of this bill will help insure the survival of motion picture exhibition in Montana for all Montanans to enjoy.

Sincere regards, Michael Curnow, Mgr.

Plaza Twin Theatre Butte, Montana

EXHIBIT "A"

MONTANA SAMPLE FILM RENTALS ON SECOND RUN THEATRES

GROSS/RENTAL

PERCENTAGE RENTAL

CONRAD/ORPHEUM	•	
Middle Age Crazy		35%
Oh Heavenly Dog		35%
Terror Train		35%
The Rose		35%
Brubaker Slooping Boouty	\$ 883 - 309	40% 35%
Sleeping Beauty UFO	408 - 142	35%
Starting Over	298.50 - 104.78	35%
*Star Trek	841.00 - 294.35	35%
American Gigolo	596.00 - 208.60	70% adj to 35%
Little Darlings	1008.25 - 403.30	70% adj to 40%
Serial	248.50 - 62.13	70% adj to 25%
Friday the 13th	593.50 - 207.73	70% adj to 35%
Urban Cowboy	994.50 - 397.80	70% adj to 40%
Rough Cut	219.50 - \$100 minimum a	
Airplane	625.50 - 218.93	- 70% adj to 35%
The Hunter	282.00 - \$100 minimum a	dj from 70%
Coast to Coast	182.00 - \$100 minimum a	dj from 70%
CUTBANK/STATE THEATER		
Middle Age Crazy		35%
Terror Train		35%
Brubaker		40%
All That Jazz		358
The Rose		40%
Sleeping Beauty	1078 - 377	358
UFO	913 - 319	35%
North Dallas 40	740.50 - 259.18	adj to 35%
Starting Over	373.00 - 130.55	70% adj to 35%
*Star Trek	1084.25 - 379.49 922.00 - 322.70	adj to 35% 70% adj to 25%
American Gigolo Little Darlings	1163.50 - 465.40	70% adj to 40%
Serial	453.25 - 113.31	70% adj to 25%
Friday the 13th	1774.00 - 709.60	70% adj to 40%
Urban Cowboy	1747.25 - 698.90	70% adj to 40%
Rough Cut	356.25 - 124.69	70% adj to 35%
Airplane	993.00 - 347.55	70% adj to 35%
The Hunter	595.50 - 208.43	70% adj to 35
Coast to Coast	447.25 - 111.81	70% adj to 25%
CUTBANK/DERRICK DRIVE IN		
The Rose		35%
Butch & Sundance		\$75
Lady and Tramp	314 - 110	35%

* 90/10 over house expense adjusted down

	GROSS/RENTAL	PERCENTAGE RENTAL
ILLON/BIG SKY		
*Scavenger Hunt	\$ 1140 - 399	35%
*The Rose	1050 - 414	40%
*Fatso	648 - 227	35%
*Norma Rae	1051 - 361	35%
*All That Jazz	1080 - 370	35%
*Empire Strikes	4137 - 2896	70%
Week 2	1649 - 989	59.9%
*Oh Heavenly Dog	818 - 285	35%
*Brubaker	1548 - 619	39%
*My Body Guard	1158 - 463	40%
*Middle Age Crazy		35%
*The Fog	1164 - 407	35%
	892.50 - 223.13	25%
*Prom Night	1213.50 - 424.73	358
*Hopscotch	688.50 - 240.98	40%
Starting Over	1248 - 436.80	358
Star Trek	1935 - 677.25	35%
American Gigolo	1297 - 324.38	25%
Serial		100 flat
Little Darlings	1873 - 655.73	35%
Friday 13th	1648.50 - 576.98	358
Rough Cut	1341 - 469.35	35%
Airplane	1744.50 - 697.80	408
Urban Cowboy	2523 - 1009.20	408
The Hunter	733.50 - 256.73	358
 Coast to Coast 	1039.50 - 259.88	25%
Any Which Way You Ca		1. 70%
· · · · · · · · · · ·		2. 60%
		3. 50%
Awakening	861 - 301	35%
Fu Manchu	771 - 231	30%
Shining	1885 - 659	35%
Bronco Billy	1854 - 927	50%
Every Which Way	1432 - 501	35%
Tom Horn	1965 - 676	1. 35%
		2. 30%
Going In Style	1761 - 704	40%
Time After Time	574 - 172	30%
Private Benjamin	3773 - 1592	1. 50%
		2. 35%
Oh God II	1738 - 608	35%
Big Brawl	466 - 139	30%
Caddy Shack	2746 - 953	1. 35%
		2. 30%
Honeysuckle Rose	2328 - 814	35%
Mad Magazine	1677 - 586	35%
*Song of South	1891 - 851	45%
Midnight Madness	802 - 240	30%
Lady & Tramp	2049 - 1024.50	50%
Last Flight Noahs Ar		35%
 Mary Poppins 	1383 - 553	40%
Herbie Goes Bananas	1461 - 584	40%
*Black Hole	1254 - 752	1. 60%
Week 2	638 - 319	2. 50%

* 90/10 over house expense -- adjusted down

. Y GROSS/RENTAL

PERCENTAGE RENTAL

GLASGOW		
Empire Strikes BAck Oh Heavenly Dog My Bodyguard	3182 - 1909	\$800 guar. 35% 35%
The Rose Middle Age Crazy Midnight Madness Herbie Goes Bananas	796 - 278 1576 - 551	408 358 358 358
Serial American Gigolo Little Darlings	755.00 - 264.25 1198.75 - 539.44 2223.75 - 1111.88	70% adj to 35% 70% adj to 45% 50%
Friday the 13th Urban Cowboy Airplane	965.00 - 386.00 2290.00 - 1145.00 1226.25 - 490.50	70% adj to 40% 70% adj to 50% 40%
Rough Cut Hunter	662.50 - 231.88 574.50 - 201.08	35% 70% adj to 35%
HAMILTON/ROXY Empire Strikes Back Erobaker	2890 - 1724	\$1000 guar. 40%
The Rose UFO Sleeping Beauty	906 - 453 1855 - 1132	35% 50% 61%
	793.75 - 277.81 $1377.75 - 482.21$ $1033.25 - 361.64$	35% 70% adj to 35% 35%
Urban Cowboy Kough Cut Airplane	1154.50 - 461.80 740.50 - 259.18 1201.25 - 480.50	70% adj to 40% 70% adj to 35% 70% adj to 40%
HAMILTON/STARLITE DRIVE IN Last Flight of Noahs Ark	697 - 261	40%
KALISPELL/GATEWAY 1 & 2 American Gigolo Little Darlings *Rough Cut *Urban Cowboy	2676.50 - 802.95 3650.00 - 1277.50 4398.00 - 2199.00 3636.00 - 2181.60	70% adj to 30% 70% adj to 35% 50% 60%
Airplane Airplane (Week 2) Hunter Hunter (Week 2) Star Trek	5288.50 - 3140.10 $1752.00 - 613.20$ $3373.50 - 1180.73$ $2541.00 - 762.30$ $272.00 - 100.00$	60% 60% 70% adj to 35% 35% 30% min
Hero at Large	607 -	60% adj to 35%
Long Riders Final Countdown Holler Boogie	391 - 819 - 667 -	60% adj to 35% 60% adj to 35% 35%
Hide In Plain Site Fish Who Saved Pittsburg	333 - 330 -	35% 35%

GROSS/RENTAL

PERCENTAGE RENTAL

LAUREL/MOVIE HAUS (continued)		
Black Stallion Starting Over Star Trek American Gigolo Little Darlings Friday Urban Cowboy Empire Strikes Back Airplane Hunter	697 - 106.50 - 50.00 621.40 - 217.49 127.50 - 100.00 670.50 - 234.68 373.00 - 130.55 1050.25 - 420.10 1971 - 1182 1069.25 - 427.70 462.50 - 161.88	50% min 35% min 70% adj to 35% 70% adj to 35% 70% adj to 40% \$300 guar. 70% adj to 40% 70% adj to 35%
LEWISTOWN		
Breaking Away Brubaker All That Jazz Empire Strikes Back Oh Heavenly Dog Black Stallion Apocalypse Now Revelation Americathon Fiddler on the Roof Roller Boogie Hero at Large Long Riders	(2500 Advance) 1094 - 1034 - 245 - 865 890 608 1497	35% 40% 35% 70% & 60% 35% 70% adj to 35% 50% 35% \$50 flat 60% adj to 35% 35% 35% 35%
LEWISTOWN/WESTERNAIRE DRIVE IN Midnight Madness	<u>1</u> 604 - 166	30%
SHELBY/ROXYMiddle Age CrazyTerror TrainBrubakerAll That JazzUFOSleeping BeautyStarting Over*Star TrekAmerican GigoloLittle DarlingsSerialFriday the 13thUrban CowboyRough CutAirplaneHunterCoast To Coast	797 - 278 1087 - 333 336.50 - 117.78 1106.50 - 387.28 658.25 - 230.39 1088.75 - 435.50 477.25 - 119.31 1248.50 - 499.40 1172.25 - 468.90 400.25 - 140.09 1068.75 - 427.50 496.50 - 173.78 370.00 - 92.50	35% 35% 40% 35% 35% 35% 70% adj to 35% 35% 70% adj to 30% 70% adj to 40% 70% adj to 40% 70% adj to 40% 70% adj to 35% 70% adj to 35% 70% adj to 35% 70% adj to 35%
WOLF POINT/LIBERTY Middle Age Crazy My Bodyguard Empire Strikes Back	2005 - 1237	35% 35% \$350 guar.

* 90/10 over house expense adjusted down

GROSS/RENTAL

١,

PERCENTAGE RENTAL

.

WOLF	POINT/LIBERTY (continued) Brubaker Last Flight of Noahs Ark Midnight Madness		- 156 - 162	40% 40% 35%		
WOLF	POINT/WALKER THEATRE					
	Black Stallion	506	-	50%		
	Fish Who Saved Pittsburg	345	-	35%		
	Apocalypse Now	863		50%		
	Fiddler on the Roof	296	-	35%		
	Roller Boogie	620	-	35%		
	Hero At Large	416	-	35%		
	Long Riders	560	-	60% adj	to	35%
	Final Countdown	493	-	60% adj	to	35%
	Motel Hell	\$75	flat	-		

Paramount Pictures Corporation

EXHIBIT "B"

Motion Picture Division

September 28, 1979

COMMONWEALTH THEATRES, INC. MANN THEATRES CORPORATION THEATRE OPERATORS, INC. WALKER THEATRE SERVICE JOE STAATS

RE: MISSOULA, MONTANA

Gentlemen:

We enclose our request for Offer Contract Forms for your convenience in submitting an offer on the following production:

> PICTURE: AIRPLANE - FLYIN' HIGH (Tentative Title) AVAILABLE: JULY 11, 1980 RUN: EXCLUSIVE FIRST RUN DUE BACK: OCTOBER 12, 1979 at 5:00 P.M.

Sincerely,

Retuit Bort

Robert A. Box Branch Manager

RAB/bm Enclosures



158 Fillmore Street, Denver, Colorado 80206 (303) 399-7582



Garamount Gictures Corporation

Motion Picture Division

GM LEISUME TIME GROUP

September 28, 1979

Gentlemen:

٢

Paramount Pictures will release AIRPLANE - FLYIN' HIGH (Tentative Title) on July 11, 1980.

The following is a synopsis for AIRPLANE - FLYIN' HIGH:

AIRPLANE - FLYIN' HIGH is a send-up on old-time flying movies, poking hilarious fun at the plane disaster movies which have involved incredible heroics and an all-star passenger list, which includes Jose Feliciano, Ethel Merman and Jimmy Walker, appearing in cameo roles. This one has its tongue strictly in its cheek, with a character list that has got to be the oddest assortment of spaced-out types ever to fly the clouds.

The creative talents behind AIRPLANE - FLYIN' HIGH are solid professionls who have brought some of the best comedies ever • filmed to the screen. This is a Howard W. Koch Production and that's a name synonymous with taste and flair in films. Koch was the producer of LAST OF THE RED HOT LOVERS, his fifth film written by Neil Simon for Paramount Pictures. He was executive producer on the 1953 Frank Sinatra film of Simon's first Broadway comedy hit, COME BLOW YOUR HORN. Later came Simon's THE ODD COUPLE in 1968, PLAZA SUITE and STAR SPANGLED GIRL in 1971. Mixed between was the musical fantasy with Barbra Streisand, ON A CLEAR DAY YOU CAN SEE FOREVER. He was also executive producer of, among others, SERGEANTS THREE, MANCHURIAN CANDIDATE, ROBIN AND THE SEVEN HOODS, NONE BUT THE BRAVE and THE PRESIDENT'S ANALYST.

With Koch overseeing the production, AIRPLANE - FLYIN' HIGH is destined to become a comedy of class and style.

AIRPLANE - FLYIN' HIGH represents the creative talents of the men who rocked the screen with KENTUCKY FRIED MOVIE, an irreverent comdey that stuck barbs in all manner of our lives and morals. With a wink in their eyes, they are making AIRPLANE - FLYIN' HIGH one of the funniest satires ever put on film, never forgetting -where the funnybone is most titillated. These inventive comic iminds belong to producer Jon Davison, director Abraham N. Zukers,

158 Fillmore Street. Denver, Colorado 80206 (303) 399-7582

And executive producers Jerry Zucker, David Zucker and Jim Abrahams (who also wrote the script).

Two bright new Hollywood talents will play the central characters in AIRPLANE - FLYIN' HIGH. Robert Hays plays Striker, a fighter pilot in World War Two who went to pieces after a crash. Hays is the engaging co-star of television's top-rated "Angie" series. Playing opposite him will be Julie Haggerty, a top New York model who will be making her motion picture debut.

AIRPLANE - FLYIN' HIGH fun and laughs begin when a four-engined prop passenger plane takes off from Los Angeles for Chicago. Even the take-off is shaky, a paredy of the spectacular takeoffs of the huge jumbo jets. Striker, the former fighter pilot, is attracted to one of the stewardesses, Elaine, who knew Striker when they were both stationed in the African jungle and she was his girl (you think Tarzan and Jane had a wild time in the junglewait until you see how Elaine and Striker swung on the trees).

Striker still feels that same old magic with Elaine, but she says it is useless. There has been too much that has gone down between them to ever reconcile their differences.

The passenger list on AIRPLANE - FLYIN' HIGH is a motley collection of bizarre characters. There is on board a flying nun (though no one seems quite certain what she's flying on), a little girl being flown from Los Angeles to Chicago for a heart transplant (a staple of the real airplane movies), two jive-talking black dudes who seem to have invented their own language, and a doctor (Leslie Nielsen) who hides a terrible secret about his past (you don't think we're going to tell you and give away his plot?)

Shortly after take-off, the two pilots, the radio operator and most of the passengers become unconscious after eating bad fish served for dinner. You know how airplane food is. Well, there they all are, up in the sky with no one to guide them - except there's Striker to the rescue!

Striker takes the controls of the airplane and is talked into landing the plane in Chicago by radio instructions from Kramer (Robert Stack), a fellow fighter pilot in the war. It is the craziest landing you've ever seen. Though Striker hits tall buildings on his approach (he's a little rusty, after all), the plane lands safely. He is a hero - and he and Elaine are going to give it another try together. But they're not taking a plane for their honeymoon. It's going to be a long cruise.

We wish to advise you that we do not have prints for screening purposes at this time and we have been advised the exhibitors are now booking their theatres for this important playing time.

We regret the necessity of soliciting offers in advance of screening. However, the competitive situation is such that we must take this course of action. We are certain that you will appreciate the business necessities which require our action on this part and feel confident that you will concur with us in this matter.

The bids are due back in the Home Office Bidding Department no later than October 12, 1979 at 5:00 P.M.

Suggested policy terms are as follows:

Minimum Playing Time: Four (4) Weeks 90/10, with the following minimums: lst week - 70% 2nd week - 60% 3rd week - 50% 4th week - 40% Balance - 35%

All contracts must include a reasonable holdover figure..

Paramount shall have the right, at its sole discretion, to terminate the engagement at the completion of the contracted playing time.

Sincerely,

1.

Paliet 1202

Robert A. Box Branch Manager

RAB/bm Enclosures



Blind-bidding factions nearin 100 100 100 m final deal; blocks still rema

By ROGER CELS

RENO - Distribution and exhibition are closer than at any time in recent years to a negotiated settlement of the blind-bidding controversy, representatives of the two factions disclosed at a press conference yesterday.

Motion Picture Association of America president Jack Valenti and his exhibitor counterpart, Richard Orear, president of the National Association of Theatre Owners, concur- + bidding dispute, Orear indicated at red that they are in basic agreement on a resolution of the dispute and that

only procedural problems related to the implementation of such a compromise stand in the way of a final deal. However, both men also stressed that the stumbling blocks to consummation of an agreement. which includes what to do about the 19 states that have already outlawed blind-bidding, are major ones that will not be easily overcome.

Ongoing discussions between Orear and Valenti, and the respective attorneys of their organizations, narrowed the differences between the two sides to a single issue recently, they indicated. This issue, which neither man would elaborate upon, prompted rejection by the board of MPAA of a compromise proposal, Valenti said.

While neither trade representative would be more specific, the essence of the present stalemate was generally agreed to be the question of the existing antiblind-bidding block of 19 states (and Puerto Rico).

Orear offered that these laws might be amended to conform with any settlement, but Valenti quickly "disassociated" himself with that assessment, pointing to the fact that many legal questions remained. He also brought up the point that antitrust considerations might bear on any agreement.

NATO queried the Justice Dept. a year and a half ago as to its attitude toward the propriety of such a negotiated settlement and the agency responded unfavorably. Trade associations are not supposed to negotiate trade practices under federal regulations and Justice would have to grant an exception in order for it to condone a pact.

While proffering hope of a speedy nationwide resolution of the blindthe news conference that NATO would pursue the state-by-state elimination of the practice.

In a speech later in the day yesterday, during opening ceremonies of ShoWest '81 at the MGM Grand Hotel here, Orear was more militant on the issue of blind-biding and less optimistic about the negotiations with Valenti.

"I regret to tell you that these meetings (with Valenti) have not borne fruit," he told the gathered exhibitors, and, in lesser numbers, production, distribution, and other industry-related factions. Noting that some 15 more states will consider antiblind-bidding legislation this year, he pledged to "continue to try to eliminate" the practice as it is "unfair."

Valenti, also a keynote speaker at yesterday's ceremonies, did not touch on the blind-bidding issue, but instead trotted out statistics on last year's movie business, most of which were released by the MPAA last week and reported on in this paper.

Most surprising was that new releases by the 10 MPAA companies (now 11 with the addition this year of Orion Pictures) increased by only three over 1979 to 137 in 1980, a period which saw Orion sharply increase its output through Warner Bros. and which was generally looked upon as plentiful in terms of product.

As previously reported, the overall national boxoffice gross last year slipped by 3% to \$2.75 million, while admissions declined 9% to 1.021 billion. The average negative cost of a film distributed by the MPAA companies rose roughly 6% in 1980 to \$9.38 million, much slower than the rate of inflation for the economy as a whole.

Valenti also touched in his speech on the emerging home entertainment avenues and the possible impact of these systems on theatres, an issue on which he and Orear had differed earlier. The MPAA chief held that home entertainment systems and theatres cater to two distinctly different audiences, but Orear warned that "a tremendous number of theatres will go under if quick release of features to these other markets is pursued."

Valenti accused exhibition of "forcing distribution to seek other forms" of release with its antiblind-bidding campaign, but Orear appeared unmoved.

Other issues covered during the news conference included a test of a more explanatory film ratings system under way in the Midwest, but nothing of substance was revealed.

LOUISIANA LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL

BOX 44012, CAPITOL BYATION BATON ROUGE, LOUIBIANA 70804 TELEPHONE

(504) 342-2350

BENATOR CHARLES C. BARHAM Chairman Epresentative claude leach, JR. Vice Chairman

January 18; 1979

DEVAN D. DAGGETT Executive Director MRS. NORNA M. DUNC Assistant Director

EXHIBIT

Ms. Lisa Pierce c/o Representative Norton State Capitol Atlanta, Georgia 30334

> RE: Act 663 of the 1977 Regular Legislative Session Prohibiting Blind Bidding on Movies

Dear Ms. Pierce:

Enclosed is a copy of Act 663 of the 1978 Regular Legislative Session of the Louisiana Legislature and its accompanying digest (synopsis). Also enclosed are copies of the House and Senate Commerce Committee meeting minutes dealing with the consideration of Senate Bill 446, which became Act 663. I believe you can gather the full extent of the arguments for and against this measure from the minutes of the Senate Commerce Committee.

The effect this legislation has had on the state of Louisiana is that the new movies are unavailable for viewing two to three months after they are released for national distribution. For example, the multimillion dollar production of <u>Superman</u> which was released around December 15, 1978, has not been showned in Louisiana as of yet, and is scheduled for early to mid-February.

I trust you will find this information useful and if I can answer any other questions, please do not hesitate to call.

Sincdrely Kerry 'Cooley Ĺ.:

Staff Attorney Senate Commerce Committee

pc enclosure





SUPERMAN, From C1

But Robert Friedman, Warner Bros.' project executive for "Superman," denied that Virginia had been singled out for "punishment" and said the film was not ready for viewing until Dec. 10.

"If anything, we're punishing ourkelves," he said. "It costs us money to go into a state to promote a film which has already opened."

Friedman said the only other states where "Superman" has not been shown is Louisiana, which joined Virgmia, Alabama, South Carolina and Ohio in banning blind bidding.

Paul Roth, owner of 15 movie theaters in Virginia, said yesterday, "Warner Bros, said they did not have a print of 'Superman' for us to look at, so we could not negotiate for the film. I think it's a good law, It's unfair to ask someone for a commitment on a commodity you can't see in advance."

The theater owner said bills to outlaw blind bidding are expected to be introduced in 25 states this year; including Maryland, where "Supernian" is drawing patrons faster than a speeding bullet.

"Yes, the fact that we can't show the film yet has hurt us financially," Roth said. "But then again, we could have gotten another 'King Kong.'", ...

Kong, a gorilla, was the star of a much-touted 1977 feature film that disappointed theater operators at the box office.

By Stephanie Mansfield Washington Pest Staff Writer

-IIICUTE

By Hobert Darkin

In Legal

Washington Past

-Tae

Superman may be able to leap tall buildings in a single bound, but in Virginia the man of steel has been unable to get off the ground.

ground. 'Warner Bros.' new film, "Superman," which has opened in cities across the country, has yet to appear in Virginia---the first casualty of a 6-month-old state law banding so-called "blind bidding" by local the ager operators.

- Under the practice, the operators compete by offering financial guarantees to a film's national distributor, without having viewed the film first. Virginia is one of five states to outlaw the practice.

"My kids were so upset they were going to boycott "Watership Down," said Virginia Attorney General J. Marshall Coleman, father of four, "I told them the reason the movie couldn't be shown in Richmond was because they found kryptonite in the James River."

A Warner Bros, spokesman said yesterday that "Superman" will open Jan 26 in Virginia, more than a month after the film's official debut.

"Superman' is being used to punish Virginia," said Del. Alan Diamonstein (D-Newport News), chief patron of the blind bidding statute that went into effect July 1. "The film companies indicated at that time that (there would be a movie we wouldn't get in the future. Sometimes we have to suffer small indignities to protect the people."

Exhibit N

HARRISBURG DRIVE-IN THEATRE

ROUTE 22 & SOUTH MOUNTAIN ROAD ==

HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA

REPLY TO: 2318 BELLEVUE ROAD HARRISBURG, PA. 17104 (717) 231-3299

- D-

Hon. Richard Thornburgh Governor of Pennsylvania Capitol Building Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17120

SUBJECT: DESIRED VETO OF SB 702 (Motion Picture Bidding)

· Dear Governor:

I and my family are the operators of the HARRISBURG DRIVE-IN THEATER on Route 22 just past the Colonial Park area in suburban Harrisburg.

For years, the family had a management contract with United Artists and were completely removed from the daily operation of the theater, however last year we did not renew the management contract and assumed all management - and therefore film booking responsibilities.

Frankly, we had become somewhat distressed with the quality of the films being offered at a theater which was under our ownership and, although financially profitable, the negative community reaction to the atmosphere created in the neighborhood by the showing of low quality films with R and X ratings.

There had to be a way to manage a small theater like ours, book quality films, and make a profit. Last year we did it. And, you'll note from the enclosed clipping of a Letter to the Editor, one area person was so pleased she took pen in hand and gave us an unsolicited public commendation. The sentiments reflected in the letter, were repeated every night at our ticket booth and our refreshment stand.

I am gravely concerned that the severe requirements contained in Senate Bill 702 will eventually make it very difficult for a small, non-chain theater to compete in the market place for quality motion pictures and that the few crumbs which are left to us will force us back to the days of R and X rated films with the attendant crowd control problems and neighborhood disturbances.

If a distributor of a quality motion picture has the choice of booking the film into a gigantic shopping center chain or our little drive-in, he will automatically opt for the chain because the income to the distributor is based on a percentage of the gross receipts. Senate Bill 702 would forbid the distributor asking or even me offering a guarantee or advance - if I so choose in an effort to offset the chain's natural advantage.

*United Artists Theatre Circuit, Inc.

Governor Thornburgh Page Two

As a small theater owner, I view Senate Bill 702 as yet another, and perhaps the final, attempt by large out-of-state chains to drive out competition and completely monopolize the industry in this state.

If that occurs, I envision the kind of impersonal management and film booking practices that brought such negative community reaction in my area. I see the time when gigantic chains will offer cheap X and R rated films to the masses for fat economic gain without regard to the harm done to society.

As a small businessman, I am deeply concerned that the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania would enact legislation which, for no reason of public good, enters into and interferes with very proper negotiations in commerce.

• Such unwarranted government intervention might be fine for corporate giants - they always seem to want government out of the business world unless it specifically benefits them - but I see this legislation as driving the nail in the coffin of what small theater operations are left in Pennsylvania.

I respectfully urge your veto of this legislation.

Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,

mulail & Thing.

Michael P. Kerrigan

CC: Richard A. Stafford Secretary for Legislative Affairs

> Richard H. Glanton, Esg. Deputy Counsel to the Governor

EXHIBIT "E"

í.



October 20, 1980

DENNIS C. STANFILL CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

The Honorable Governor Edward J. King The Commonwealth of Massachusetts Executive Department State House Boston, Massachusetts 02133

Dear Governor King:

Thank you for your letter of October 9, 1980. I appreciate your kind words about our hospitality while you were at the Studio.

I regret that I was away and not able to see you. I very much wanted to tell you how disappointed we were with the action of your State toward motion picture and television production. Blind bidding legislation enacted in Massachusetts was both unnecessary and illconceived. It is directly contrary to the spirit of deregulation which is accepted in every phase of American life. It seeks to protect people who do not need protection -the theatre owners of Massachusetts. Your State has some of the most successful and prosperous theatre owners in this country.

Twentieth Century-Fox will not willingly start a motion picture or television production in the State of Massachusetts if there is a feasible alternative, as long as your blind bidding legislation is in force. We will go elsewhere to states which are more hospitable to the needs of all of the industry.

I trust that in time, you will see fit to have this ill-advised legislation repealed.

Sinderely

DCS:mih

DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAYS

		DEPARTMENT OF HIGHV	VAYS	EXHIBIT "E"
		HWINDEN, GOVERNOR ASLUEDGE GOVERNOR STATE OF MONTAN MOTION PICTURE REVENUE		2701 PROSPECT
		· ·	Estimated Re	
Year		Film	<u>Left in Mont</u>	ana <u>Total</u>
1974	Aug Oct.	KILLER INSIDE ME Butte - Universal	\$ 450,000	
	April - June	RANCHO DELUXE Livingston	500,000	
1975	Aug Oct.	WINTERHAWK Kalispell - Charles B. Pierce	432,000	\$ 1,382,000
	June - July	MISSOURI BREAKS Billings, Virginia City & Red Lodg Universal	5,000,000 e	
	Aug Oct.	WINDS OF AUTUMN Kalispell - Charles B. Pierce	425,000	
	August	(TV) Millers Beer - Commercial Great Falls	10,000	
	August	1/10 POTATO FRITZ Helena - West German Film Co.	15,000	\$ 5,450,000
1976	Feb July	BEARTOOTH Red Lodge - ESI Production - Waco,	225,000 Tx.	
	August	1/10 DAMNATION ALLEY Flathead Lake - 20th Century Fox	90,000	
	August	(TV) ALPO - COMMERICAL Forsyth - Dog Food	10,000	
1977	August	PONY EXPRESS RIDER Virginia City - Doty Dayton Prod. Salt Lake	15,000	\$ 340,000
	April	TELEFON Great Falls - MGM	220,000	
	June	GREY EAGLE Helena - Charles B. Pierce	475,000	I

AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY HANDICAPPED FUR, AND

MOTION PICTURE REVENUE (cont'd) Page 2

ş

		,		
	June	DR. HOOKER'S BUNCH Red Lodge - ESI Production	450,000	
•	August	(TV) DAY OF HELL . Aubrey-Lyons Prod. Warm Springs	500,000	
	October	(TV) XMAS MIRACLE IN CAUFIELD, U.S.A. 20th Century Fox - Roundup	400,000	
	October	SCHOOL BUS SAFETY FILM DOCUMENTARY Missoula	1,500	\$ 2,046,500
• 1978				
-	Feburary	WINTER RECREATION U.S.T.S. Film - Whitefish	2,000	
	February	WEST YELLOWSTONE SNOWMOBILE RACES Warner Miller Prod.	2,000	
•		West Yellowstone	2,000	
	August	THE SHINING Stanley Kubrick Hawk Films, Ltd. Herts, England Warner Bros. Glacier National Park - Scenic Backgrou	50,000 und	·
	October	WHITEHORSE SCOTCH - COMMERCIAL Film Fair, Los Angeles Red Lodge Area	20,000	
-	October	(TV) RODEO RED AND THE RUNAWAY GIRL Highgate Pictires Learning Corporation of America Billings - Broadview	200,000	
•	December	DATSUN - COMMERCIAL Billings Area	20,000	\$ 294,000
1979			2	
	January	ARTIC CAT – COMMERCIAL Lyle McIntire Wilson – Kriazh Los Angeles – West Yellowstone	3,000	
	February	TOTAL ECLIPSE ABC News Special - Helena	10,000	
2 2	February	TOTAL ECLIPSE Astronomical Society of America Paul Ryan - Lewistown & Helena	10,000	
Sec				

MOTION PICTURE REVENUE (cont'd) Page 3

<u> </u>	Feb Oct.	HEAVENS GATE United Artists Kalispell, E. Glacier, Butte & Pole Bridge	17,000,000	
-	March	SECURITY BANK - COMMERICAL Fry - Sills Associated Film Makers - Miami, Flor Billings Area	8,000 ida	
	March - May	HEARTLAND . Film Haus/Wilderness Women Prod. Harlowtown - White Sulphur, Two Dot	500,000	
	May - June	(TV) WALKS FOR WOMEN - NBC EMI Production Billings, Hardin, Red Lodge	1,400,000	
·		MILLER BEER - COMMERCIAL Backer and Spielvogel, Inc. Great Falls, Dillon	20,000	•
	June	(TV) SOUTH BY NORTHWEST Production – Black Pioneer Virginia City – Nevada City	80,000	
	August	RICHARD LEVINE - COMMERCIAL American Airlines Productions Great Falls	10,000	
	Sept.	WINSTON - COMMERICAL Frank Moscoti - New York Kalispell, Thompson Falls & Pole Bridge	50,000	
	October	TIRE PRODUCT - (BANGDAD) COMMERCIAL Great Falls - Missoula - Cedar Rapic Vieda Limited	5,000 ds, Iowa	
	•	MILLER BEER – COMMERICAL Backen & Spielvogel, Inc. Red Lodge	70,000	
	November	WRIGLEY'S GUM - COMMERCIAL Hang Glider Kalispell - Corum	50,000	\$19,216,000
1980	June	GENERAL ELECTRIC CO COMMERICAL Big Sky	10,000	

MOTION PICTURE REVENUE (cont'd) Page 4

GW/kg/S27

AugustGOOD MORNING AMERICA - TV Billings Area5,000SeptemberBIG JOHN JEANS - JAPANESE COMMERCIAL Pyramid Production Bozeman - Livingston AMERICAN TRAIL - TV DOCUMENTARY Syndicated TV in 25 states Smiloft Television, Lincoln, NE Missoula - Glacier National Park - Big Fork6,000OctoberKHQ TV - DOCUMENTARY Moiese Bison Range - Virginia City5,000NovemberBIG JOHN JEANS - JAPANESE COMMERCIAL - PAgar - Eagle Migration 3 week shoot10,000NovemberBIG JOHN JEANS - JAPANESE COMMERCIAL - 2nd Shoot Pyramid Production Bozeman - Livingston10,000	•	July - August	FAST WALKING Lorimar Prod. Deer Lodge – Old Prison Rocker	1,750,000	
Pyramid Production Bozeman - Livingston AMERICAN TRAIL - TV DOCUMENTARY Syndicated TV in 25 states Smiloft Television, Lincoln, NE Missoula - Glacier National Park - Big Fork6,000 Syndicated TV in 25 states Smiloft Television, Lincoln, NE Missoula - Glacier National Park - 		August		5,000	
October KHQ TV - DOCUMENTARY 5,000 PM MAGAZINE Spokane, WA Moiese Bison Range - Virginia City CONTINENTAL DIVIDE - FEATURE Universal Studio West Glacier - Apgar - Eagle Migration 3 week shoot 10,000 November BIG JOHN JEANS - JAPANESE COMMERCIAL - 2nd Shoot Pyramid Production		September	Pyramid Production Bozeman - Livingston AMERICAN TRAIL - TV DOCUMENTARY Syndicated TV in 25 states Smiloft Television, Lincoln, NE	,	
Moiese Bison Range - Virginia City CONTINENTAL DIVIDE - FEATURE Universal Studio West Glacier - Apgar - Eagle Migration 3 week shoot 10,000 November BIG JOHN JEANS - JAPANESE COMMERCIAL - 2nd Shoot Pyramid Production		October	Big Fork KHQ TV - DOCUMENTARY	5,000	
Universal Studio West Glacier - Apgar - Eagle Migration 3 week shoot 10,000 November BIG JOHN JEANS - JAPANESE COMMERCIAL - 2nd Shoot Pyramid Production					
COMMERCIAL - 2nd Shoot Pyramid Production	, .		Universal Studio West Glacier - Apgar - Eagle Migratio		
Bozeman - Livingston10,000		November	COMMERCIAL ~ 2nd Shoot		
				_10,000	

\$ 1,806,000

\$30,534,500

ANALYSIS OF HOUSE BILL 409

House Bill 409 outlaws many of the existing business practices of the motion picture industry, practices which have been proven in the marketplace. This bill dictates new terms for contracts between motion picture distributors and theater owners and provides that the distributor and theater owner cannot agree among themselves to waive any of those terms. The bill makes it a crime, punishable by up to six months in jail and a fine of up to \$500, for a theater owner or a motion picture distributor to violate any of its provisions.

Why do the sponsors of this measure want to involve Montana's government so extensively in the affairs of a private business? Montana's theater owners are not inexperienced amateurs at the mercy of the major film producers. They are experienced professionals operating large and successful businesses. The majority of the movie theater business in Montana is done by just four companies ---Mann Theatres Corporation of California; Commonwealth Theatres, a Missouri corporation; Theater Operators, Inc., a Wyoming corporation; and Carisch Theaters, Inc., a Minnesota corporation. According to their latest reports, on file with the Montana Secretary of State, those companies had gross receipts of 132.9 million dollars in 1979. The same reports show that those companies took in more than 8.9 million dollars from their Montana operations in that year.

These are not people with whom motion picture companies feel free to deal on a "take it or leave it" basis. They control a large and profitable market for our product. In fact, they are the <u>only</u> market for our films in Montana. We need them to rent and show our movies far more than they need us. Last Christmas, our members had fourteen films scheduled for release. Helena has four screens. Who is in the better bargaining position? Our rental negotiations with Montana theater owners are far from one-sided affairs. They are tough, able bargainers who are managing their business quite well without the interference of Montana government. The president of the Montana Theater Owners' Association recently reported that, with attendance at Montana theaters increasing, "The theater industry is healthy and it is here to stay." (Great Falls Tribune, May 1, 1980, p. 6-B). Montana theater owners clearly are not in need of the massive governmental intrusion into their business affairs which House Bill 409 would sanction.

With that background, let us examine the specific provisions of House Bill 409.

1. BLIND BIDDING

House Bill 409 prohibits motion picture distributors and theater owners from bidding, negotiating or contracting for the rental of a motion picture until the exhibitor has had an opportunity to see the movie. That sounds reasonable, doesn't it? Unfortunately, the economics of producing motion pictures are such that in many cases producers simply cannot afford the delay that special pre-release showings of a completed film to theater owners would entail.

Because theater owners are the prime market for their products, motion picture producers do provide "trade screenings" for theater owners before bidding or negotiating for their rental as often as circumstances permit. In 1980, members of the Motion Picture As-

-2-

sociation of America released 131 films for distribution in Montana. Of those films, 55 were trade screened prior to bidding or rental negotiations. Four were re-releases of earlier movies with which the theater owners were already familiar. One was rented without a trade screening but with a provision in the rental agreement allowing the theater owner to cancel the agreement within 48 hours of receiving the movie. Only 71 of the 131 films were rented "blind", without a trade screening (54%). A majority of Montana's theater owners did not attend the trade screenings of those films for which they were available, even though they were frequently held in Denver or Salt Lake City.

\$

It should be emphasized that no Montana theater owner is compelled to bid on or negotiate for any motion picture before he has seen it. He is free to refuse to bargain for any film. He can wait until the film is released in other areas, see it there, and study the box office receipts it generates before committing himself to exhibit it. Of course, if his theater is located within one of the three cities in this state which has competing theaters, his competitor may take the risk and book the film "blind." House Bill 409 would deprive competing Montana theater owners of that freedom of choice.

Motion picture producers bid blind too -- on a much larger scale than any theater owner. They commit themselves to the expenditure of millions of dollars to make a movie from a book, a play, or often on the basis of a rough idea for a movie. The average production cost for a motion picture by a major company is now over ten million dollars. Advertising and promotion can add another five million dollars. Firm commitments for prime time television commercials

-3-

must be made as far as eleven months in advance. Release of the film must coincide with the advertising. Delay in booking a film into theaters may not only miss the impact of an expensive advertising campaign but imposes serious financial burdens on the producers. At today's interest rates, a movie budgeted at fifteen million dollars for production and promotion means over nine thousand dollars a day in bank charges! And most theater owners do not pay their rentals until from 30 to 60 days after they have shown a film.

We must get our products on a paying basis as soon as possible. Blind bidding is often the best means of doing so. Our notices to bidders tell them as much as we can about the as yet unfinished movie. If it is based on a book or a play, we tell them that, together with the figures on sales for the book or play. We tell them what the story is about, the audience at which the film is directed (family, adult, youth, etc.), who the stars are, the name of the director and producer, and the advertising campaign planned to promote it.

On the basis of that description, we invite bids or enter into negotiations with theater owners for rental of the film. At the time bids are invited, we have not seen a final print of the movie ourselves. We are not in the business of misleading theater owners. Our relationship is, of necessity, one of mutual trust. Every unsuccessful movie which we produce makes it more difficult to market our other films. Since most of our rentals are based on a percentage of box office receipts, we want our films and the theater owners who , rent them to do well. Motion picture distributors often revise the

```
-4-
```

terms of a rental agreement downward where a film has not done well in a particular theater. For example, the film, "Dressed to Kill" was rented to the Campus Cinema in Bozeman on the basis of 70% of ticket receipts. When it did poorly, that rental was voluntarily scaled downward to 35%. We trust the theater owners to give us an honest count of their box office receipts. They trust us to provide them with a quality product.

On occasions, we are both disappointed. But we lose much more from an unsuccessful film then the theater owners.

"Blind bidding" is not uncommon in our economy. Manufacturers spend millions on research and development without any assurance that they will develop a marketable product. Exploration for oil and gas proceeds with only limited knowledge of what lies beneath the earth's surface. The consumer is asked to blind bid on many products. When he buys a book or a ticket to a play or a film, he does so on limited information. When a movie patron is disappointed in a film, he has no recourse to recover his expense. Would the theater owners be willing to require by law that they could collect payment from their patrons only <u>after</u> they had seen the movie and then only in the amount the patron thought it was worth?

2. OTHER RESTRICTIVE PROVISIONS OF THE BILL

House Bill 409 would also greatly impair the freedom of motion picture distributors and theater owners to contract in other areas. It would outlaw contract provisions calling for minimum payment guarantees. If this bill is being sold on the basis of the theater owners' need to see a film before negotiating for its rental, why are these provisions necessary? Do the theater owners want the State of Montana to guarantee them a profit as well?

E ...

Montana has a comprehensive Unfair Trade Practices and Consumer Protection Act, enacted in 1973, which already provides adequate protection for theater owners. (Sections 30-14-101, <u>et seq</u>., MCA). The state should not be writing our contracts.

Guarantees, which would be prohibited by House Bill 409, are sometimes required but they are almost never payable until two weeks before the film is delivered. Every business makes similar demands of customers. They are a legitimate means of doing business and should not be prohibited.

3. HOUSE BILL 409 IS NOT A CONSUMER PROTECTION BILL

In its statement of purpose, House Bill 409 indicates that it will benefit the moviegoing public by "expanding the choice of motion pictures available" and "holding down admission prices". It will do neither.

Nothing in this bill would or could require motion picture producers to make more movies and all of our production is available for screening in Montana. This bill will not reduce or "hold down" admission prices. States which have enacted similar laws have experienced rising ticket prices just as have states without such laws.

If the sponsors of House Bill 409 really want to "benefit the moviegoing public by holding down admission prices to motion picture theaters" (Section 2), they can draft a bill empowering some state agency to regulate ticket prices and the price of popcorn, candy, and soda pop as well. We suspect the theater owners would object as strongly to such a measure as would we.

CONCLUSION

House Bill 409 is an unwarranted government interference with

-6-

the contracting practices of a private industry. According to figures compiled by the Montana Travel Promotion Unit, motion picture production companies have spent over 30.5 million dollars in filming movies in this state since 1974. The movie "Heaven's Gate", which to date has been a financial disaster for its producer, spent some 17 million dollars in Montana.

٩

The motion picture industry is a substantial contributor to the Montana economy. We think that entitles us to fair treatment from Montana government. House Bill 409 is not fair -- it is punitive and unnecessary.

-7-